
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 

YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

May 13, 2013 
 

Work Session – 5:00 p.m. 
Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
JEAN HALL CURRIE 

STAN ELDRIDGE 
MIKE MARTIN 

SCOTT MARTIN 



    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

WORK SESSION AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

MONDAY, MAY 13, 2013 
 

5:00 P.M. 
 

CIVIC CENTER 
BOARD ROOM 

7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE 
 

 
 

1. REVIEW AGENDA 
 
2. OTHER DISCUSSION 

 
 

 
 

 



 

REVIEW AGENDA 
 

A. SUPERVISOR STUMBO WILL REVIEW BOARD 
MEETING AGENDA 



 

OTHER DISCUSSION 
 

A. BOARD MEMBERS HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO 
DISCUSS ANY OTHER PERTINENT ISSUES 



   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEYPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
                SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO  CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE  TREASURER LARRY DOE 

                                TRUSTEES: JEAN HALL CURRIE  STAN ELDRIDGE  MIKE MARTIN  SCOTT MARTIN 
 

     

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA (revised) 
 

MONDAY, MAY 13, 2013 
7:00 P.M. 

 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF THE APRIL 22, 2013 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING AND 
APRIL 26, 2013 SPECIAL MEETING 

 
B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

5. SUPERVISOR REPORT 
 

A. PROCLAMATIONS FOR “MULTIPLE CHEMICAL SENSITIVITY AWARENESS WEEK 
AND CHEMICAL AWARENESS WEEK 

 
6. CLERK REPORT 

 
7. TREASURER REPORT 
 
8. TRUSTEE REPORT 

 
9. ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

 
1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #8 
 
2. REQUEST OF THE YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP PARK COMMISSION TO PURCHASE SIGN 

TO COMMEMORATE “JAN HALE PLAYGROUND ADVENTURES”, NOT TO EXCEED 
$4,000, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #212.970.000.975.794                           

 
3. AUTHORIZATION FOR  SUPERVISOR AND CLERK TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS 

REQUIRED BY HUD FOR TOWNSHIP PARTICIPATION IN HUD “FIRST LOOK 
PROGRAM” THAT WOULD ALLOW THE TOWNSHIP TO ACQUIRE FORECLOSED 
PROPERTIES DIRECTLY FROM HUD FOR RESALE TO HABITAT FOR HUMANITY AND 
TO AUTHORIZE NEGOTIATING A CONTRACT WITH HABITAT FOR PURCHASE OF 
HUD OWNED PROPERTIES 

  



 
Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 2  May 13, 2013 
 
 
 
 
  

4. RESOLUTION NO. 2013-14, ECONOMIC VITALITY INCENTIVE PROGRAM (EVIP) PART 
3 AND EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION PLAN 

 
5. RESOLUTION NO. 2013-15, AUTHORIZING PURCHASE OF 953 E. MICHIGAN AVENUE 

FOR A PUBLIC PURPOSE UNDER “RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL”, NOT TO EXCEED 
$47,110, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101.950.000.969.011 

 
6. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR TO ACCEPT THE GRANT BETWEEN 

THE MICHIGAN LAND BANK FAST TRACK AUTHORITY AND THE CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI FOR THE DEMOLITION OF LIBERTY SQUARE IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $653,840.00 AND TO AUTHORIZE SIGNING OF THE CONTRACT 

 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 
AUTHORIZATIONS & BIDS 
 
 
1. REQUEST OF JEFF ALLEN, RSD DIRECTOR TO ACCEPT LOW BID FROM LUTZ 

ROOFING COMPANY, INC. FOR THE 14-B DISTRICT COURT ROOF REPLACEMENT IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $269,420.00, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101.970.000.971.003 

 
2. REQUEST OF JEFF ALLEN, RSD DIRECTOR TO ACCEPT PROPOSAL FROM 

CARDNO/JFNEW FOR DESIGN SOLUTION OF NORTH HYDRO SHORELINE EROSION 
PROJECT IN THE AMOUNT OF $76,988 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #212.970.000.975.795 

 
3. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR TO ACCEPT THE LOW BID FROM DORE 

& ASSOCIATES CONTRACTING, INC. FOR THE DEMOLITION OF LIBERTY SQUARE IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $653,840.00, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101.950.000.969.013                               
AND TO AUTHORIZE SIGNING OF THE AGREEMENT 

 
4. REQUEST OF ART SERAFINSKI, RECREATION DIRECTOR TO AWARD BIDS AS 

FOLLOWS FOR LAKESIDE PARK IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, PENDING MDNR 
APPROVAL, TO BE PAID WITH COMBINED FUNDS FROM MICHIGAN NATURAL 
RESOURCES TRUST FUND (MNRTF) GRANT, EMU, SALINE ROWING TEAM, AND 
WASHTENAW COUNTY PARKS AND RECREATION, BUDGETED IN FUND 212: 

 
A. AWARD LAKESIDE PARK IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (MNRTF 10-05) TO LOW 

BIDDER, CEDRONI ASSOCIATES, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $562,000  
 

B. AWARD GEOTECHNICAL MATERIALS TESTING SERVICES TO LOW BIDDER, 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE INDUSTRIES, INC. FOR LAKESIDE PARK 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (MNRTF 10-055) IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,080  
 

C. AWARD BOATHOUSE PORTION OF LAKESIDE PARK IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
(MNRTF 10-05) TO LOW BIDDER, CONTRACTING RESOURCES IN THE AMOUNT 
OF $320,000 

 

 
 
 
 



 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

MINUTES OF THE APRIL 22, 2013 WORK SESSION 
 
 

The meeting was called to order by Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo at 
approximately 5:10 p.m. in the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 
7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township.  
 
Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Karen Lovejoy 

Roe, Treasurer Larry Doe, Trustees Stan Eldridge, 
Jean Hall Currie, and Mike Martin  

 
Members Absent: Trustee Scott Martin 
  
 
Legal Counsel: None 
 
 
 
1. YANKEE AIR MUSEUM PRESENTATION (see attached) – DENNIS 

NORTON 
                  
Dennis Norton, founder of the Yankee Air Museum in 1981 and current President 
of the Michigan Aerospace Foundation, the sister organization of the museum. 
He introduced Ray Hunter, Chairman of the Board of the Yankee Air Museum 
(YAM), Mike Montgomery, fundraising consultant and Simon Baisley, Board of 
the Michigan Aerospace Foundation.  He thanked Mark Perry, Township 
Economic Development Consultant and Bruce Rasher from RACER Trust for 
their assistance with the YAM presentation. 
 
Mr. Norton explained their current location was on the east side of Willow Run 
Airport, in Van Buren Township. He explained work on the museum had been 
underway for over thirty-two years but the original building was lost to a fire a 
number of years ago.  He shared that YAM had struggled to reconstruct the 
building and now YAM had two buildings to use in Van Buren Township. He 
explained YAM could not expand at the current location and the Willow Run GM 
Bomber Plant site would be a great new location for YAM.  
 
Mr. Norton said he began discussions a couple of years ago with Elliot Laws and 
Bruce Rasher from Racer Trust on the possibility of Yankee Air Museum 
acquiring a small section of the old Bomber Plant to restore and preserve the 
history of the Bomber Plant, the workers and the community.  
  
Mr. Norton reviewed the YAM slide presentation regarding the proposed new 
location. He explained one of the slides was a historic photo of the Bomber Plant 
from 1943 depicting the area YAM wanted to preserve.  
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
APRIL 22, 2013 WORK SESSION MINUTES 
PAGE 2 
 
 
Mr. Norton explained the remaining slides depicting two concepts that YAM was 
considering. He stated the cost for redeveloping the Bomber Plant would be 50% 
less than new construction for the same square footage for a new museum.  
 
Additionally, after talking to Mary Kerr of the Ann Arbor Convention and Visitor 
Bureau, Mr. Norton said he felt they could build a convention center and meeting 
room facilities to host 1,000 guests at the site, making the future YAM 
Convention Center Complex on the Willow Run GM Bomber Plant site the largest 
such facility in Washtenaw County. 
 
Mr. Norton said they had signed a Letter of Intent with RACER, and the next step 
was to work on a Development Agreement with the Township. He explained they 
were working against an August 1, 2013 deadline.  
 
Mr. Norton provided copies of the DVD, “The Story of Willow Run” and said it 
was a fascinating movie produced in 1945 by Ford Motor Company showing the 
building of the Bomber Plant and the manufacturing of the B-24 bomber planes. 
He reported PBS had broadcast it over the last few months.  
 
Mark Perry, Economic Development Consultant introduced two key individuals 
supporting the YAM project team, Bill Kinley and Bryce Kelly. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said it was going to take a team effort for YAM to move 
forward and she stated she was very thankful that RACER was in support of 
YAM. She also said it was a great opportunity for economic development, 
tourism and for preservation of a part of the history of Ypsilanti Township and the 
United States. She offered Ypsilanti Township’s help to do whatever was needed 
to make the new Yankee Air Museum a reality. 
 
Mr. Norton said there were roughly 8,700 B-24s built at Willow Run during World 
War II, one every 55 minutes. He said that today there were only four known B-
24s built at Willow Run remaining in the world. He stated that only one of the four 
was in the United States at an air base in Louisiana. He explained the Yankee Air 
Museum was a Smithsonian affiliate and then asked Ray Hunter to come to the 
microphone. 
 
Ray Hunter, Chairman of the YAM Board, explained he had gone to a meeting of 
air museum directors and administrators in Dayton, Ohio where he was asked if 
YAM would like to have a Ford built the B-24 at their museum. Mr. Hunter stated 
he was confident that with a proper facility YAM would be able to have the B-24 
in Louisiana relocated here in Ypsilanti Township where it was originally built.  
 
Mr. Norton estimated financing needs for the YAM project to between $8,000,000 
and $6,000,000. He shared that YAM was working with U.S. Congressman John 
Dingell and U.S Senator Carl Levin. He asked for help in identifying others that 
would support the project and enable YAM to preserve a part of the “Arsenal of 
Democracy”. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
APRIL 22, 2013 WORK SESSION MINUTES 
PAGE 3 
 
  
Bruce Rasher, redevelopment manager for RACER, said the Trust was formed in 
March of 2011 out of the bankruptcy of former General Motors. He stated the 
mission of the Trust was to help the communities impacted by the closing of GM 
facilities, through undertaking safe and environmental cleanups and working 
closely with communities to find new buyers that would make investments and 
create jobs. He shared RACER had been working very closely with Supervisor 
Stumbo, Clerk Lovejoy Roe and Treasurer Doe and was very pleased to attend 
the board meeting and share remarks regarding the Yankee Air Museum. Mr. 
Rasher explained the Trust’s job was to find capable buyers and that the last 
thing RACER wanted to do was sell one of these facilities, which were important 
assets to the community, to a buyer who promised one thing and did not follow 
through. As part of that commitment, the RACER Trust required buyers that 
wanted to reuse the GM buildings to demonstrate an understanding of the cost 
involved to renovate, the requirements to bring the buildings up to code and 
finally, to be able to demonstrate the financial capacity to accomplish all those 
things. He said the Trust believed the Yankee Air Museum had gone through all 
the steps required to evaluate the building and the costs. He said YAM had 
engaged competent and experienced architects, engineers, and RACER had 
provided YAM with access to the buildings and they had conducted the 
necessary studies. They had reviewed the cost estimates with them. He said the 
RACER Trust was supporting this very important initiative because they had met 
certain criteria. 
 
 
2. AUGUST 2013 MILLAGE ELECTION RECOMMENDATION 
 
Treasurer Doe stated the Millage Committee met on several occasions to review 
the 35.5% loss of taxable value in Ypsilanti Township and the impact of the 
resulting revenue losses on all the millages and operations.  He said Ypsilanti 
Township had lost approximately $ 6.5 million in revenues from 2007 to 2012. 
Treasurer Doe shared the Millage Committee was recommending a combined 
1.75 millage increase for Police, Fire and Environmental Services.  He shared 
that the materials distributed in the board packets reviewing the projections for all 
funds did not include any capital improvements. He also indicated the committee 
worked to make a recommendation to the board with the smallest possible 
millage increase in view of the tremendous loss of revenues. He said the 
recommendation would result in fund balances of 15% of expenditures or slightly 
more. He explained that a 15% fund balance in all funds was necessary to 
maintain Ypsilanti Township’s AA rating with Standard & Poor’s.  
 
Trustee Mike Martin said that through the review and millage process the 
committee looked at different options and millage levels. He indicated the 
committee’s recommendation was based upon an assumption that the taxable 
values had hopefully bottomed out and the reductions in revenue would end. 
Trustee agreed with Treasurer Doe that no one liked to raise a millage 
unnecessarily. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
APRIL 22, 2013 WORK SESSION MINUTES 
PAGE 4 
 
 
Trustee Stan Eldridge said that no committee members enjoyed requesting a 
millage increase but it was necessary to keep Ypsilanti Township stable. He also 
stated the millage request represented bare bones expenditures hoping the 
residents would support the millage proposals. Trustee Eldridge and Treasurer 
Doe thanked Javonna Neel, Accounting Director for her work on the committee. 
 
Javonna Neel, Accounting Director said the committee had done a lot of work   
forecasting, making conservative assumptions and projections that did not 
include wage increases or capital improvements. She said they felt comfortable 
with recommending the 1.75 millage increase. 
 
Treasurer Doe said the more we can save the better off we are going to be when 
we get out to 2017, and stated that we must continue to figure out how to do 
things more cost effectively. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said the financial information was in the packet, the backup, 
the forecasting numbers as well as a memo explaining how many millions of 
dollars we had lost due to the decrease in taxable value of township properties. 
She explained the township had cut thirty-one positions through attrition and 
eight firefighters had retired and the township had not filled those positions. She 
also said that eleven police officers had been reduced and the township had cut 
salaries and health care costs. She added the township had lost a lot of revenues 
due to the loss of taxable value and yet continued to provide excellent services 
such as brush pick-up, yard waste, recycling and the police had done an 
outstanding job. She said Ypsilanti Township was at a point where the loss of 
revenues cannot be substantiated by further cuts and explained the township 
must continue pursuing economic development, which was the key to expanding 
the tax base. She stated economic development would take at least one to two 
years for new businesses to make a difference in the taxes collected. She stated 
it was necessary to ask the residents if they would be willing to support 
increasing the millage rates to provide the services that we have now.  She 
stated that even with the millage increases most residents would not pay as 
much in taxes as they did in 2007.  
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe shared that if the millages all passed, the total amount of 
taxes paid by most Township property owners would still be substantially below 
the total taxes paid in 2007 or 2008, before the taxable values began to drop. 
She reported the overall taxable value in Ypsilanti Township was reduced by 
35.5%. She said that the reduction in taxable values had required the adjustment 
in the millage rates for the upcoming millage election. Clerk Lovejoy Roe 
expressed caution regarding the proposed millage rates. She said that even if the 
millages were all passed that it would take most of the fund balances in the 
millage funds to provide services over the next four years. She said it was very 
rare for the Township to utilize fund balances for operations and it was 
mandatory to remain vigilant in finding ways to reduce costs and increase 
revenues to continue to provide services to Township residents. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
APRIL 22, 2013 WORK SESSION MINUTES 
PAGE 5 
 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated the Township would do a mailing educating and 
informing residents regarding the ballot language. She said the Township would 
not ask for this if was not necessary. 
 
 
3. REVIEW PORTABLE BASKET BALL DEVICE ORDINANCE 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY & PROCEDURE FOR ENFORCEMENT 
 
Supervisor Stumbo explained the ordinance was the result of a discussion with 
the Washtenaw County Sheriff’s Department regarding basketball hoops in the 
road and their lack of ability to enforce removal. Angela King, Township Attorney 
had drafted the ordinance and Mike Radzik, OCS Director had drafted the 
enforcement policy. 
 
Mr. Radzik said the goal was voluntary compliance but when necessary, the 
Township would take the least invasive method of enforcement. He explained 
that enforcement would be complaint generated and every effort would be made 
to identify the owner. Mr. Radzik stated the basketball hoop would be tagged with 
a specialized placard stating required removal within 24 hours. He further stated 
if the basketball hoop were not removed from the road right-of-way within 24 
hours, it would be confiscated and retained for no less than 30 days. If retrieved, 
there would be a $50 fee and a citation would be issued. Any unclaimed items 
would be disposed after 30 days. Mr. Radzik said the plan was to have 
Residential Services pick up the basketball hoops in violation but there may be a 
need to contract with an outside company that had the ability to respond 
immediately. He explained that municipal civil infractions ranged between $100 
and $500. Mr. Radzik said immediate action would be taken with repeat 
offenders. He asked if the Board would like him to investigate hiring a local 
company. 
 
 
REVIEW AGENDA 
 
The Board of Trustees reviewed the agenda as follows: 
 
 
TRUSTEE REPORT 
 
Trustee Eldridge, at Trustee Scott Martin’s request, read at letter from the 
Washtenaw County Road Commission into the record regarding the Whittaker 
Road issue where several fatalities had occurred (see attached). 
 
 NEIGHBORHOOD VIDEO CAMERAS 

 
Trustee Eldridge stated he and Jeff Allen, RSD Director were directed by the 
Board to research neighborhood video cameras. He said Mr. Allen had obtained 
some rough cost numbers and this was not a cheap project. Trustee Eldridge 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
APRIL 22, 2013 WORK SESSION MINUTES 
PAGE 6 
 
said there would need to be a lot more discussion on how to proceed and who 
would be responsible for the cost of installing and annual maintenance. He 
provided a very rough estimate of $11,000 for one camera, with an additional 
annual maintenance cost of approximately $2,000. He further provided a 
breakdown of the cost. Trustee Eldridge questioned if the Board wanted to 
approach Neighborhood Watch Groups about a special assessment or did the 
Board want the Township to fund the project. He said based on the earlier 
millage discussion, he was not sure the Township could fund the project. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated she would like to see a more enhanced camera 
system for the safety and security of the Township residents. She said she had 
also discussions with the Sheriff’s Department regarding the cameras on traffic 
lights. 
 
Trustee Eldridge explained he was aware that a lot of residents would like to 
have the cameras but the question of funding would need to be decided. He 
stressed there was great value in a camera system. 
 
Arloa Kaiser, Township Resident agreed it would be nice to have the cameras 
but felt the Township’s money should be reserved in case of an emergency. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo explained there may be the possibility of obtaining a grant but 
before it could be presented to Neighborhood Watch Groups, it would be 
necessary to have the cost. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #6 

 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe reviewed the budget amendment.  
 

 
2. APPOINTMENT OF JASON IACOANGELI TO THE ZONING BOARD OF 

APPEALS WITH TERM ENDING DECEMBER 13, 2013 
 

Supervisor Stumbo explained that Roberta Schrock a long time member of the 
Zoning Board of Appeals had passed away and, if approved, Mr. Iacoangeli 
would be the new appointment. 
 

 
3. REQUEST OF LARRY DOE, TREASURER FOR AUTHORIZATON TO PAY 

OFF US BANK GENERAL OBLIGATION LIMITED TAX CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT BOND SERIES 2005A TAX EXEMPT DTD 2-17-2005 
PRIOR TO JUNE 1, 2013, IN THE AMOUNT OF $261,647.50, BUDGETED 
IN LINE ITEM #396.000.000697.000 
 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
APRIL 22, 2013 WORK SESSION MINUTES 
PAGE 7 
 
 
Treasurer Doe explained that paying the bond off early would save the Township 
$32,382.50. 
 

 
4. REQUEST OF ART SERAFINSKI, RECREATION DIRECTOR TO FILL 

VACANT BUILDING ATTENDANT POSITIONS 
 

Supervisor Stumbo stated the vacancies were existing part-time positions at the 
Community Center.  

 
Art Serafinski, Recreation Director said the request was the fill vacancies, would 
provide coverage for all hours of operation at the Community Center. He 
indicated he would like to keep three part-time building attendants. 

 
 

5. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR TO APPROVE AND FILL 
PART-TIME ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT ASSISTANT POSITION 
 

Mike Radzik explained this was a new position in the framework of the 
Teamster’s Labor Agreement. He said he had asked Bill Elling, President of the 
Teamster’s Local to be here to answer any questions the Board might have. 
He said Human Resources had worked with Bill Elling and the Teamsters’ have 
preliminarily agreed to the creation of this position. He said the request was to 
create a part-time, up to 24 hours a week, Ordinance Enforcement Assistant 
position. He said this would help the Office of Community Standards expedite the 
number of rental inspections and provide the ability to handle more ordinance 
complaints. He indicated the position was funded strictly through revenue 
generated by the rental inspection program. 

 
Supervisor Stumbo asked if the plan was to fill this position with the trained and 
experienced person that was currently in the full time position and Mr. Radzik 
agreed. 

 
 

6. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR TO APPROVE AND FILL 
WEB CONTENT & DESIGN MANAGER POSITION 
 

Supervisor Stumbo stated this item was discussed at the last Work Session and 
was on the agenda again to answer questions raised by the Board. 

 
Trustee Eldridge expressed his concern that a new and attractive website would 
not necessarily draw new business to the Township. He wanted reassurance that 
there would be value to the Township by the creation of a new position. Trustee 
Eldridge questioned how the Township would know that a more attractive 
website had attracted new business. 

 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
APRIL 22, 2013 WORK SESSION MINUTES 
PAGE 8 
 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated the position was encouraged by the Economic 
Development Consultant to attract new business but that was not the only 
purpose. She further stated the website would help residents conduct business 
with the Township. Supervisor Stumbo said the website was currently controlled 
by Washtenaw County and this would provide the Township total control over all 
aspects of the site. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said the new website would have the ability to measure the 
use of online services such as, FOIA requests, building permits and dog licenses. 
She said residents want to be able to conduct business with the Township online. 

 
Mike Radzik, OCS Director provided in-depth description of the position. He 
further explained there were several ways to analysis how the website was 
viewed. Mr. Radzik added the website could also benefit Human Recourse by 
providing employee services through an internal portal that is currently done 
manually.  

 
Trustee Eldridge questioned is the position would require 40-hours a week once 
the new design was complete and if there had been any discussion about making 
it a consultant position versus a union position.  

 
Karen Wallin, Human Resource stated the intent was to hire the person that had 
worked on the website development for the past seven months. She explained 
she was hired part-time through Manpower and had done an excellent job. Ms. 
Wallin said other options were discussed and it was decided an internal position 
would best suit the needs of the Township. 

 
Mr. Radzik explained the position would have a great deal of responsibility and 
would require a reliable, trusted and confidential employee. He further explained 
the person would answer directly to him. 

 
 

7. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR TO FILL FULL-TIME 
FLOATER/CLERK III POSITION IN THE OCS DEPARTMENT  
 

Mike Radzik, OCS Director provided a brief summary of the position. He 
explained the employee currently in the position had posted on another position, 
creating a vacancy in his department.  Mr. Radzik said the position was funded in 
the Planning budget but would also service Ordinance/Rental Inspection. 

 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said the posting may also create a vacancy in another 
department and asked the Board to allow Human Resource to post any positions 
that may be created as a result and to post externally if necessary. 

 
Trustee Eldridge stated that Karen Wallin did not know he was going to discuss 
the Human Resource Department, so he apologized in advance for putting her  
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
APRIL 22, 2013 WORK SESSION MINUTES 
PAGE 9 
 
 
on the spot. He said he felt a part-time or contract position was needed in the 
Human Resource Department. Trustee Eldridge said the Township was getting  
ready to make a major healthcare change and he did not know how one person 
could handle all the Human Resource needs. He asked if there were other 
employees that could help. Trustee Eldridge stated he was not opposed to filling 
the OCS position but he felt they need to get some help in the Human Resource 
Department. He said the Township was filling all the other position but they were 
asking one person to oversee all the Township benefit programs and all the EAP 
issues. 

 
Treasurer Doe agreed with Trustee Eldridge but stated there was a need to fill 
the current vacant position. 

 
Trustee Eldridge reiterated that he did not object to filling the position but 
stressed that the Board needed to discuss providing help to the Human 
Resource Department. 

 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
Treasurer Doe said that a few meetings ago he had mentioned about recognizing 
past officials, residents and employees that contributed to Ypsilanti Township. 
Treasurer Doe asked for direction regarding whether a committee should be 
established to review future community recognitions. The board informally 
agreed that Treasurer Doe could chair such a committee for the board.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo reported Leon Jackson was officially retiring. He “retired” 
three years ago but had continued to work seasonally and that April 26, 2013 
would be his last day working for the township. She said Mr. Jackson had a lot of 
history in the township and had been an icon at the Green Oaks Golf Course for 
forty-one years. She shared that she wanted to give him a special recognition 
and had asked permission to have a get together for him but he did not want that. 
She said his service to Ypsilanti Township and Green Oaks Golf Course and our 
residents had been perfect and that he was one of the best public servants she 
had ever met in her entire life.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo briefly reported on the Washtenaw County Road Commission 
meeting with Township residents on Thursday, April 18, 2013 regarding the 
proposed road diet on Michigan Avenue. She said Trustee Hall Currie had 
attended the meeting with about ten residents and they were not supportive of 
the project. Supervisor Stumbo said she asked for more information from the 
Road Commission regarding the proposal. She shared that the Washtenaw 
County Road Commission had done a five year study, from 2006 – 2010 and 
found there were 135 crashes, mostly having to do with left hand turns.  
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
APRIL 22, 2013 WORK SESSION MINUTES 
PAGE 10 
 
 
She said the purpose of the proposed road diet, going from four lanes to three 
with a center turn lane was for safety and the Road Commission had received 
funds to change the lanes on Michigan Ave. 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:48 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk  



page r or r

——-Original Mcssage ——-
prom0 'rownsand, Roy t . , lt*:towns. ndzn creeds. * ]
Sent: Monday, April 15, 2013 7:45 AM

fo: Scott D. Martin
subject: p67: whittakex Road

Sco'tt,

Doug let me know I sent thi" to youz old c-mail addzes

Sorry about that.

Roy

Ixom: Iownsend Roy
Sent: thursday, Apxzl 11, 2013 10:69 AM
fo0 scott D. Martin (swart nstm .n io. 1.
cc0 puller, Dougla
Subject: Whittakez Road

Scott,

As follow up to ouz convex ation thi mozning on whittakez Road. 1'he Road
commission has met with the property ownezs and the gtieving fmnilies regarding
the tree removals, and the tree are scheduled to be removed next week.

wc «re «lso going to do a saicty audit of the zoadway to review 51003, pavemamt
markings and other road features. At Whittakez and Mezzitt we do have fedelal
funds programed fox 2017 to do an intczsection impzovement project, which we ate
looking at constructing a zoundabout, which was proposed 5 — 7 year ago by
developers.

If' have otbor gucstions please give me a call (327-6662l.

Rol

Roy Zowa and, p.m.
Managing D11cctox
Washtenaw County Road Commissioo



 April 22, 2013 
 

    
The New Yankee Air Museum: 

 
 

A campus for historical, educational and community activities. 
 

Spring 2013 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 



 2 

The New Yankee Air Museum 
 

The Yankee Air Museum and the Michigan Aerospace Foundation are partnering with Ypsilanti Township, the RACER Trust and Wayne County 
Airport Authority to create a new campus home for the Museum on the WEST side of Willow Run Airport.  While some details still await 
resolution, this project will: 
 

 Preserve a portion of the historic Willow Run Bomber Plant that played such a critical role in winning World War II and developing this 
region. 

   
 Provide an exciting first project to help stimulate new, future-oriented redevelopment at Willow Run. 

 
 Reunite the Museum’s flyable historic aircraft with its ground-based exhibits and programs at a single site.  Because the flyable aircraft 

and associated maintenance and restoration activities are our most compelling and educational exhibits, this will recreate the energy and 
excitement of the original (pre-2004, pre-fire) Yankee Air Museum. 

 
 Support a broader Museum storyline including content on the role Willow Run played in changing the American workforce, initiating 

“just in time” manufacturing and shaping the economic and social development of this region. 
 

 Build upon the Bomber Plant’s important role in the World War II “Arsenal of Democracy” story to create a place at which to recognize 
Michigan’s important continuing role in the aerospace industry and national defense. 

 
 Add STEM – Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics – content to the visitor experience and educational offerings in order to 

inspire young people to pursue education and career opportunities in those fields. 
 

 Create a compelling, large new venue for corporate, family and community events with capacity for 1,000 or more. 
 

 Be “green” in the sense of a project that reuses existing buildings and infrastructure and does not add “hardscape” or otherwise worsen this 
region’s storm water runoff challenge. 

 
This plan replaces the “Hangar Campaign” through which the Museum was to build a hangar for the flyable aircraft and “village” of smaller 
structures at its current location on the east side.  That plan would have not only been substantially more expensive than the one outlined here but 
also more complex and would have taken longer to implement as it included extension of the airport’s AOA and the construction of additional 
public infrastructure in the areas of potable water, sanitary sewer and storm water handling through projects that (as of spring 2013) remain largely 
unfunded.  NOTE: The Museum will seek a buyer or, failing that a tenant, for its current facility. 



 3 

 
The World Famous 
Willow Run Bomber Plant 
was the most visible 
piece of the “Arsenal of 
Democracy” which was 
Detroit during World War 
II. 
 
One B-24 Bomber rolled 
out of these doors every 
55 minutes, 24 hours a 
day, 7 days a week.   
 
This is the piece of the 
old Bomber Plant that the 
Yankee Air Museum 
proposes to save and 
restore to its original 
condition. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 4 

Conceptual Plan – The New Yankee Air Museum Campus 

 
 

Hangar One 

Bomber Plant 



 5 

The General Concept for the new museum showing both 
the greater site layout and a preliminary interior layout. 
 
 
 
 

 



 6 

Current concepts are aimed at either a single or a multi-building configuration 
 
To create the new campus, the Yankee Air Museum will: 
 
 Acquire a portion of the former Bomber Plant and site from the RACER Trust.  This area will be developed to house the museum’s primary 

exhibits and major programs.  Space to be acquired in the former Bomber Plant will exceed the Museum’s near term needs, providing room to 
grow and/or to house the flyable aircraft. 

 
 An alternate concept would add a long term (30-year) lease for a portion of Hangar One and adjacent land with Willow Run Airport.  This 

space would then house the flyable historic aircraft and Museum offices as well as provide a temporary home for some Museum programs and 
functions while the former Bomber Plant is being restored.   In this concept the museum and other public areas would eventually be housed in 
the restored Bomber Plant, a new structure linking the Bomber Plant with Hangar One would be constructed giving them a common entrance 
and visitors a comfortable, all-weather path between the buildings and the flyable aircraft, the B-17, B-25 and C-47 would continue to be 
housed in Willow Run Airport’s Hangar One.   

 
In either concept, the single building utilizing only the restored Bomber Plant, or the two building concept utilizing both the Bomber 
Plant and hangar space in Willow Run Airport’s Hangar One, the Yankee Air Museum would be located entirely in Ypsilanti Township. 
 
 
 
Economic Impact 
 
Whether in one building or two, a new Yankee Air Museum would have a very significant economic impact for this region during both 
construction and subsequent operations.  A preliminary economic impact analysis using conservative assumptions and methodology has estimated 
the on- and off-site (or “spin-off”) economic impact of a new Yankee Air Museum as: 
 
Jobs – 454 on- and off-site jobs from construction (the majority of these are likely to be in Michigan with 40% -- 182 --  or more in the local area). 
An additional 34 on- and off-site jobs (all local) could be supported from subsequent museum operations.  
 
Income - $18,186,000 during construction and a minimum of $571,605/year thereafter from museum operations. (Note: A 5-year figure for income 
for local residents from museum operations would be $2,858,025 before adjustment for inflation.) 
 
Total economic impact - $58,752,000 during construction and $1,519,579/year from subsequent museum operations. (Note: The unadjusted 5-year 
estimate for economic impact from operations would be $7,597,895.) 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 22, 2013 REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
 

The meeting was called to order by Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, at 
approximately 7:00 p.m. in the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 
7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township. The Pledge of Allegiance was 
recited and a moment of silent prayer was observed. 
 
Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Karen Lovejoy 

Roe, Treasurer Larry Doe, Trustees Stan Eldridge, 
Jean Hall Currie and Mike Martin 

 
Members Absent:  Trustee Scott Martin 
 
  
Legal Counsel:  Wm. Douglas Winters and Angela King 
 
 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Donald Hazzard, Township Resident expressed his concerns that DTE/MichCon 
had been in his neighborhood trying to install digital readers on the Smart Meters 
without prior acknowledgment. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that DTE had not informed the Township about plans 
to install readers on the gas meters. She said the Township would make inquiries 
to the Public Service Commission. 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
A. MINUTES OF THE APRIL 8, 2013 WORK SESSION, REGULAR 

MEETING AND EXECUTIVE SESSION 
B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
C. MARCH 2013 TREASURER REPORT 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
approve the Consent Agenda. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 
A. SOUTH CONGRESS LAWSUIT 
 
Attorney Winters provided a brief update on the Circuit Court case involving 
illegal dumping at the S. Congress location. 
 
B. 2555 WASHTENAW 
 
Attorney Winters stated in response to a 911 call, the Washtenaw County 
Sheriff’s Department (WCSD) witnessed an individual dumping gasoline into the 
storm drain at 2555 Washtenaw and immediately contacted the Township. He 
said administrative approval was received to seek legal action in Circuit Court to 
abate the environmental hazard, as well as multiple zoning and blight violations. 
 
Mike Radzik, OCS Director said his office was able to trace that storm drain 
south to Northlawn Street. He stated samples collected by YCUA would be used 
as evidence in both the criminal and civil cases. 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
APRIL 22, 2013 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 2 
 

 
 
 
 
  

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge 
to formally authorize legal action in Washtenaw County Circuit Court to 
abate the environmental hazard and multiple zoning and blight violations 
for property located at 2555 Washtenaw Avenue. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
C. WOOD CREEK APARTMENTS 
 
Attorney Winters explained the owner of the Wood Creek Apartments, which 
burned in July 2012 had received a substantial insurance settlement but had 
failed to make any repairs. The property owner had filed an appeal with the 
Construction Board of Appeals seeking a variance from the analysis done by Ron 
Fulton, Building Director, which was denied. He said would proceed with the 
lawsuit, as previously directed. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #6 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe read the budget amendment into the record. 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Hall Currie 
to approve Budget Amendment #6 (see attached). The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
2. 1ST READING RESOLUTION NO. 2013-13, PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 

2013-428, AMENDING CHAPTER 58 OF THE YPSILANTI CHARTER 
TOWNSHIP CODE OF ORDINANCES – BASKETBALL HOOPS  

 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe read the Resolution into the record. 

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to             
approve the 1st Reading of Resolution No. 2013-13, proposed Ordinance 
No. 2013-428, amending Chapter 58 of the Ypsilanti Charter Township Code 
of Ordinances – Basketball Hoops (see attached).  
 
Trustee Eldridge expressed his concern regarding the Township’s liability if a 
basketball hoop was knowingly left in the road right-of-way.  
 
Attorney Angela King replied that normally the basketball hoop was not left in the 
actual roadway but under the Motor Vehicle Code, law enforcement had a right to 
remove any obstruction in the roadway that presented a hazard to motorists. 
 
Trustee Eldridge suggested contracting with a company that would pick up the 
basketball hoops once the 24-hour period had expired. He said the additional 
cost may also change the fee structure. 
 
Mike Radzik, OCS Director explained the fee structure was part of the 
administrative policy, which could change, as needed. 
 
The motion carried as follows: 
 
Eldridge: Yes S. Martin: Absent Hall Currie: Yes   Stumbo: Yes  
Lovejoy Roe: Yes Doe: Yes M. Martin:     Yes 
 
 
3. APPOINTMENT OF JASON IACOANGELI TO THE ZONING BOARD OF 

APPEALS WITH TERM ENDING DECEMBER 13, 2013 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
APRIL 22, 2013 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 3 
 

 
 
 
 
  

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Hall Currie 
to approve the appointment of Jason Iacoangeli to the Zoning Board of 
Appeals with the term ending December 13, 2013. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
4. REQUEST OF LARRY DOE, TREASURER FOR AUTHORIZATION TO 

PAY OFF US BANK GENERAL OBLIGATION LIMITED TAX CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT BOND SERIES 2005A TAX EXEMPT DTD 2-17-2005 
PRIOR TO JUNE 1, 2013, IN THE AMOUNT OF $261,647.50, BUDGETED 
IN LINE ITEM #396.000.000.697.000 
 

A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Clerk Lovejoy Roe                                
to pay off US Bank General Obligation Limited Tax Capital Improvement 
Bond Series 2005A Tax Exempt DTD 2-17-2005 prior to June 1, 2013, in the 
amount of $261,647.50, budgeted in line item #396.000.000.697.000. The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 
Treasurer Doe explained that by paying off the bond the Township would save 
$33,882.50.  
 
 
5. REQUEST OF ART SERAFINSKI, RECREATION DIRECTOR TO FILL 

VACANT BUILDING ATTENDANT POSITIONS 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge 
to approve the request of Art Serafinski, Recreation Director to fill vacant 
Building Attendant positions. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
6. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR TO APPROVE AND FILL 

PART-TIME ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT ASSISTANT POSITION 
 

A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to 
approve and fill part-time Ordinance Enforcement Assistant position. The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated the position was funded through the Rental Program 
and the current full-time employee would assume the position as discussed in the 
Work Session. 
 
 
7. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR TO APPROVE AND FILL 

WEB CONTENT & DESIGN MANAGER POSITION 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Hall Currie 
to approve and fill Web Content & Design Manager Position. The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated the position would be filled by the current part-time 
contract employee as discussed in the Work Session. 
 
 
8. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR TO FILL FULL-TIME 

FLOATER/CLERKIII POSITION IN THE OCS DEPARTMENT 
  
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
fill the Floater/Clerk Position in the OCS Department and to advertise 
externally if the posting was not signed. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said the Board agreed to include advertising externally in the 
event that a Township employee did not sign the posting. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
APRIL 22, 2013 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
PAGE 4 
 

 
 
 
 
  

9. RESOLUTION NO. 2013-9 FIRE PROTECTION, PREVENTION, RESCUE 
SERVICES AND EQUIPMENT RESERVES MILLAGE 

 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe read the Resolution into the record. 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Hall Currie    
to approve Resolution No. 2013-9 Fire Protection, Prevention, Rescue 
Services and Equipment Reserves Millage (see attached). The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
 
10. RESOLUTION NO. 2013-10 POLICE SERVICES MILLAGE 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe read the Resolution into the record. 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Mike 
Martin to approve Resolution No. 2013-10 Police Services Millage (see 
attached). The motion carried unanimously. 
 
11. RESOLUTION NO. 2013-11 RECREATION, BIKE PATH, SIDEWALK, 

ROADS, PARKS, GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND MILLAGE 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe read the Resolution into the record. 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe                 
to approve Resolution No. 2013-11 Recreation, Bike Path, Sidewalk, Roads, 
Parks, General Operations Fund Millage (see attached). The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
12. RESOLUTION NO. 2013-12 GARBAGE, REFUSE COLLECTION, 

RECYCLING, COMPOSTING, DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE, ENERGY 
CONSERVATION, ALTERNATIVE ENERGY, WATER QUALITY AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION MILLAGE 

 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe read the Resolution into the record. 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to 
approve Resolution No. 2013-12 Garbage, Refuse Collection, Recycling, 
Composting, Disposal of Solid Waste, Energy Conservation, Alternative 
Energy, Water Quality and Environmental Protection (see attached). The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Hall Currie 
to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor   Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2013 BUDGET AMENDMENT #6

April 22, 2013

Total Increase $300,370.84

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $36,122.00
Net Revenues $36,122.00

Expenditures: Permanent Wages 101-266-000-706.000 26,401.34                  
FICA 101-266-000-715.000 1,821.00                    
MERS 101-266-000-876.000 3,094.00                    
Health Care 101-266-000-719.000 2,584.00                    
Health Care Deductible (annual est deductible) 101-266-000-719.020 4,250.00                    
Dental 101-266-000-719.015 278.00                       
Life/Disability 101-266-000-720.000 295.00                       

Net Expenditures 38,723.34                  

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $261,647.50
Net Revenues $261,647.50

Expenditures: Transfer out to Debt Fund Series A Bond 101-999-000-969-396 261,647.50                

Net Expenditures $261,647.50

Total Increase $261,647.50

Revenues: Transfer In: General Fund 396-000-000-697.000 $261,647.50

Net Revenues $261,647.50

Expenditures: Principle 396-991.000-991.020 $260,000.00
Interest 396-991.000-991.021 $1,647.50

Net Expenditures $261,647.50

Total Increase $13,564.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 248-000-000-699.000 $13,564.00

Net Revenues $13,564.00

Expenditures: Rental Inspections 248-248-000-706.014 $12,600.00
FICA 248-248-000-715.000 $964.00

Net Expenditures $13,564.00

Increase Transfer in from General fund to payoff principle of $260,000 and interest of $1,647.50.  The 
Township will save over $36,000 in interest fees by paying this bond off early. This will be funded by a transfer 
from General fund.

248- RENTAL INSPECTION FUND

Increase Rental Inspection for part time rental inspector at $15 per hour with a max of 24 hours per week.  
This will be funded by an Appropriation of the Prior Year Fund Balance.

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND

Increase Computer Support Department for full time web content & design manager. The position is to begin 
May 1, 2013. The  wages and fringes are prorated for 8 months.  This will be funded by an Appropriation of the 
Prior Year Fund Balance.

Increase Transfer out to debt fund Series A bond to payoff bonds early.  This will be transferred to Debt bond 
fund 396.  This will be funded by the assigned Debt reserve in fund balance.

396- DEBT FUND SERIES A

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2013 Budget (#6): 
 
 

 
Move to increase the General Fund budget by $300,370.84 to $8,003,805 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 
 

Move to increase the Debt Fund Series A Bond budget by $261,645.50 to $4,950,782 and 
approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 
 
Move to increase the Rental Inspection Fund budget by $13,564 to $102,172 and approve 

the department line item changes as outlined. 
 
 
 
 
 



 1 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
ORDINANCE NO. 2013-428 

 
An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 58  

of the Ypsilanti Charter Township  
Code of Ordinances - Basketball Hoops 

 

 The Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby ordains that Chapter 58 of the 
Ypsilanti Township Code of Ordinances is amended to add the following new 
provision: 
 
I. Purpose and Scope 

This ordinance is intended to promote the safety of motorists, pedestrians and 
basketball players who are in the public right of way and public sidewalks by 
prohibiting the placement of portable or permanent basketball hoops on public 
sidewalks and public right of ways.  This ordinance is not intended to regulate the 
placement or use of basketball hoops on private property. 
 
II. Definitions 
 
For the purpose of this ordinance, the following terms mean: 
  

A) “Basketball hoop” means a backboard, hoop with or without a net, or 
supporting apparatus designed or intended to be used to play 
basketball. 

 
B) “Public right of way” means a paved or unpaved highway, street or 

road, including lawn extensions and the portion of a driveway on public 
property, maintained by the Washtenaw County Road Commission for 
the use by the public. 

 
C) “Public sidewalk” means a paved area between the curb lines or the 

lateral sides of the roadway and the adjacent property lines intended for 
the use of pedestrians. 

 
D) “Supporting apparatus” means a post, pole or similar object that is 

either: 
 

1) attached to a moveable support base and is designed or 
intended to support a basketball hoop with or without a net, 
or 

2) affixed to the ground and is designed or intended to support a 
basketball hoop with or without a net 

 
 

III. Basketball hoops are prohibited in public right of ways and 
sidewalks. 
 
 No person shall erect in the public right of way or public sidewalk a 
basketball hoop. 
 
IV. Violations Civil Infraction 
 
 A person guilty of violating Section 3 of this ordinance shall be responsible 
for a municipal civil infraction as provided in Chapter 40 of this Code. 
 
V. Removal of basketball hoops in public right of ways and sidewalks. 

 
 A basketball hoop located on a public right of way or public sidewalk in 
violation of Section III, may be removed by the Township or a law enforcement 
officer.  



 2 

Severability 

Should any section, subdivision, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance be 
declared by the Courts to be invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of the 
Ordinance as a whole or any part thereof other than the part as invalidated. 
 
Publication 
This Ordinance shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation as 
required by law.   
 

Effective date 
This Ordinance shall become effective upon publication in a newspaper of 
general circulation as required by law.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify approval of the first reading of Proposed Ordinance No. 2013-428 by the 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees assembled at a regular meeting held on April 22, 
2013. The second reading is scheduled to be heard on June 24, 2013. 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Resolution No. 2013-9 

PROPOSITION A 
Fire Protection, Prevention, Rescue Services and  

Equipment Reserves Millage  
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to levy the millage allocated to the Charter Township 
of Ypsilanti in order to provide services as it pertains to fire protection, prevention 
and rescue services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Ypsilanti Township Board desires to pay for said services only if 
approved by the voters of Ypsilanti Township. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the following proposition be placed 
on the ballot for an election to be held on the 6th day of August, 2013 
 

PROPOSITION A 
(Fire Protection, Prevention, Rescue Services and Equipment Reserves) 

 
Shall the Charter Township of Ypsilanti be authorized to levy and increase the 
limitations of the total amount of general ad valorem taxes which may be 
imposed in any one year upon real and tangible personal property in the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, Michigan, as provided by Section 6 of 
Article IX of the Constitution of Michigan, 1963, from 0.0 to 3.125 ($3.125 per 
$1000), for a period of four (4) years from 2013-2016 both inclusive, for the 
purpose of providing revenues for fire protection, prevention, rescue services and 
equipment reserves? The first year of this levy shall generate estimated revenue 
of $3,459,816. 
 
 
The Fire Protection, Prevention, Rescue Service and Equipment Reserves 
Millage would generate revenues to replace some of the fire service revenues 
lost due to decrease in property values. The revenue generated by this millage 
will be used specifically to provide fire services and for no other purpose. 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall supersede any previously 
adopted resolutions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2013-9 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on April 22, 2013. 

  
 

___________________________________ 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

 Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Resolution No. 2013-10 

 
PROPOSITION B 

 
Police Services 

Millage  
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to levy the millage allocated to the Charter Township 
of Ypsilanti in order to provide services as it pertains to law enforcement 
services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Ypsilanti Township Board desires to pay for said services only if 
approved by the voters of Ypsilanti Township. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the following proposition be placed 
on the ballot for an election to be held on the 6th day of August, 2013 
 

PROPOSITION B 
(Police Protection) 

 
Shall the Charter Township of Ypsilanti be authorized to levy and increase the 
limitations of the total amount of general ad valorem taxes which may be 
imposed in any one year upon real and tangible personal property in the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, Michigan, as provided by Section 6 of 
Article IX of the Constitution of Michigan, 1963, from 0.0 to 5.95 ($5.95 per 
$1000), for a period of four (4) years from 2013-2016 both inclusive, for the 
purpose of providing revenues for law enforcement services, community 
policing/neighborhood watch and ordinance enforcement? The first year of this 
levy shall generate estimated revenue of $6,587,489. 
 
 
The Police Services Millage would generate revenues to replace some of the 
police services revenue lost due to decrease in property values. The revenue 
generated by this millage will be used specifically to provide police services and 
for no other purpose. 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall supersede any previously 
adopted resolutions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2013-10 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on April 22, 2013. 

  
 

___________________________________ 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

 Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Resolution No. 2013-11 

 
PROPOSITION C 

 
Recreation, Bike Path, Sidewalk, Roads, Parks,  

General Operations Fund Millage  
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to levy the millage allocated to the Charter Township 
of Ypsilanti in order provide services as it pertains to providing recreation/park 
facilities, bike paths, repair of sidewalks, roads and general operating purposes; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Ypsilanti Township Board desires to pay for said services only if 
approved by the voters of Ypsilanti Township. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the following proposition be placed 
on the ballot for an election to be held on the 6th day of August, 2013 
 

PROPOSITION C 
(Recreation, Bike Path, Sidewalk, Roads, Parks, General Operations Fund) 

 
Shall the Charter Township of Ypsilanti be authorized to levy and increase the 
limitations of the total amount of general ad valorem taxes which may be 
imposed in any one year upon real and tangible personal property in the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, Michigan, as provided by Section 6 of 
Article IX of the Constitution of Michigan, 1963, from 0.0 to 1.0059 ($1.0059 per 
$1000), for a period of four (4) years from 2013-2016 both inclusive, for the 
purpose of providing revenues for recreation/park facilities, bike paths, repair of 
sidewalks, roads and general operating purposes? The first year of this levy shall 
generate estimated revenue of $1,113,673. 
 
 
The Recreation, Bike Path, Sidewalk, Roads, Parks, General Operations Fund 
Millage will be used specifically to provide these services and for no other 
purpose. 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall supersede any previously 
adopted resolutions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2013-11 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on April 22, 2013. 

  
 

___________________________________ 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

 Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
Resolution No. 2013-12 

 
PROPOSITION D 

 
Garbage, Refuse Collection, Recycling, Composting, Disposal of Solid Waste,  

Energy Conservation, Alternative Energy, Water Quality and Environmental  
Protection Millage  

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to levy the millage allocated to the Charter Township 
of Ypsilanti in order to provide services as it pertains to garbage, refuse 
collection, recycling, composting, disposal of solid waste, energy conservation, 
alternative energy, water quality and environmental protection; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Ypsilanti Township Board desires to pay for said services only if 
approved by the voters of Ypsilanti Township. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the following proposition be placed 
on the ballot for an election to be held on the 6th day of August, 2013 
 

PROPOSITION D 
 

(Garbage, Refuse Collection, Recycling, Composting, Disposal Of Solid Waste, 
Energy Conservation, Alternative Energy, Water Quality and Environmental 

Protection) 
 
Shall the Charter Township of Ypsilanti be authorized to levy and increase the 
limitations of the total amount of general ad valorem taxes which may be 
imposed in any one year upon real and tangible personal property in the Charter 
Township of Ypsilanti, Washtenaw County, Michigan, as provided by Section 6 of 
Article IX of the Constitution of Michigan, 1963, from 0.0 to 2.155 ($2.155 per 
$1000), for a period of four (4) years from 2013-2016 both inclusive, for the 
purpose of providing revenues for garbage, refuse collection, recycling, 
composting and disposal of solid waste? The first year of this levy shall generate 
estimated revenue of $2,385,889. 
 
 
The Garbage, Refuse Collection, Recycling, Composting, Disposal of Solid 
Waste,  
Energy Conservation, Alternative Energy, Water Quality and Environmental  
Protection Millage would generate revenues to replace some of the 
environmental services revenue lost due to decrease in property values. The 
revenue generated by this millage will be used specifically to provide 
environmental services and for no other purpose. 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this resolution shall supersede any previously 
adopted resolutions.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2013-12 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on April 22, 2013. 

  
 

___________________________________ 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

 Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 26, 2013 SPECIAL MEETING 

 
 

The meeting was called to order by Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, at 
approximately 8:30 a.m. in the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 
7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township.  
 
Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Treasurer Larry Doe, 

Trustees Stan Eldridge, Jean Hall Currie and Scott 
Martin 

 
Members Absent:  Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe and Trustee Mike Martin 
 
Legal Counsel:  None  
 
 
1. REQUEST TO APPROVE CREDIT CARD  ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT 

WITH MERCURY FOR PROCESSING CREDIT CARDS AT GREEN OAKS 
GOLF COURSE, BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM NUMBER #584.584.000.957 
AND TO AUTHORIZE SIGNING OF THE AGREEMENT 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Hall Currie, supported by Trustee Eldridge 
to approve the Credit Card Acceptance Agreement with Mercury for 
processing credit cards at Green Oaks Golf Course, budgeted in line item 
number #584.584.000.957 and to authorize signing of the agreement. The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
2. BUDGET AMENDMENT #7 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Scott Martin, supported by Trustee Hall 
Currie to approve Budget Amendment #7 (see attached). The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
 
3. REQUEST TO PURCHASE SEVEN (7) ERGONOMIC DESK CHAIRS IN 

THE AMOUNT OF $5,152, BUDGET IN LINE ITEM #101.267.000.956.000 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Hall Currie to 
approve the purchase of seven (7) ergonomic desk chairs in the amount of 
$5,152, budget in line item #101.267.000.956.000. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Trustee Scott Martin stressed it was very important to have ergonomically correct 
chairs. He said although the chairs were not cheap, it was a fundamentally 
necessary purchase. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:35 a.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor   Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2013 BUDGET AMENDMENT #7

April 26, 2013 Special

Total Increase 5,152.00                                        

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $5,152.00

Net Revenues $5,152.00

Expenditures: Miscellaneous 101-267-000-956-000 5,152.00                   

Net Expenditures 5,152.00                   

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND

Increase General Services Department to replace 7 desk chairs in the Civic Center.    This will be funded by 
an Appropriation of the Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2013 Budget (#7): 
 
 

 
Move to increase the General Fund budget by $5,152 to $8,008,957 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 
 

 
 
 
 



05/08/2013 02:08 PM CHECK REGISTER FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
User: mharris CHECK NUMBERS 161333 — 161449
DB: Ypsilanti-Twp

Page: 2/2

Check Date Bank Check Vendor Vendor Name msount

05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013

AP TOTALS:

AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP

161411
161412
161413
161414
161415
161416
161417
161418
161419
161420
161421
161422
161423
161424
161425
161426
161427
161428
161429
161430
161431
161432
161433
161434
161435
161436
161437
161438
161439
161440
161441
161442
161443
161444
161445
161446
161447
161448
161449

3214
1637
16395
15386
6308
0371
0634
11274
2954
0383
15751
3002
1507
0399
16364
15370
3212
3212
STANTEC
6384
0449
4402
0468
15941
6523
3082
0497
6627
0163
0444
0444
WASHTENAW

hJDE ELECTR
16404
6271
4263
7054
0480
0494

RENT A IYRECK
RESIDEX
RESIDEX TURFGRASS ***
RICOH USA, INC.
RKA PETROLEUI4
SAFEGUARD BUSINESS SYSTEMS
SAM'S CLUB DIRECT
SENSAPHONE
SHERRI BILLMAN
SHERWIN WILLIAMS COMPANY

SOUTHERN COMPUTER WAREHOUSE

SPARTAN CHASSIS, INC.
SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS
SPEARS FIRE 4 SAFETY SERVICE
SPICER GROUP
SRIXON CLEVELAND GOLF
STANLEY CONVERGENT SECURITY
STMLEY CONVERGENT SECURITY
STANTEC
STAPLES* — ACCOUNT IJ1026071
SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF DETROIT
TDS METROCOM

TITLEIST
TODD BARBER
UNIQUE I SERVICE
UNIVERSITY TRANSLATORS
VAN BUREN STEEL 4 FABRICATING
VICTORY LME
WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD

WASHTENAW COUNTY TREASURERJJ
NASHTENAW COUNTY TREASURERJJ
NASHTENAW URGENT CARE
WDE ELECTRIC
I'JELLS FARGO FINANCIAL LEASING
WILLOW RUN COJ84UNITY SCHOOLS
WOLVERINE FREIGHTLINER
YCUA

YPSILANTI COMMUNITY

SEE IIEDICAL SERVICE COMPANY

339.00
676. 50

3, 383. 64
1, 642. 00
7, 606.50

297. 14
195.18
100.51
40.00
71.34

415.65
301.09
122.59
242. 20
192.50

1,023.75
907.14
835.00

2, 694.93
131.40

2, 022. 36
870.00
212.00

2, 125.00
1,366.00

420. 00
26. 95
30.59

27, 499.31
443, 625. 00
443 625 00

345.00
375.00

5, 503.85
2, 424. 00

538.62
350.74

2, 409.42
283.92

TOtal of 117 Checks:
Less 0 Voi.d Checks:

Total of 117 Disbursements:

1, 199,073.90
0.00

1,199,073.90



05/08/2013 02:08 PM

User: mharris
DB: Ypsilanti-Twp

CHECK REGISTER FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
CHECK NUMBERS 161333 — 161449

Page: 1/2

Check Date

Bank AP AP

Bank Check Vendor Vendor Name mao un t

05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013
05/08/2013

AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP

161333
161334
161335
161336
161337
161338
161339
161340
161341
161342
161343
161344
161345
161346
161347
161348
161349
161350
161351
161352
161353
161354
161355
161356
161357
161358
161359
161360
161361
161362
161363
161364
161365
161366
161367
161368
161369
161370
161371
161372
161373
161374
161375
161376
161377
161378
161379
161380
161381
161382
161383
161384
161385
161386
161387
161388
161389
161390
161391
161392
161393
161394
161395
161396
161397
161398
161399
161400
161401
161402
161403
161404
161405
161406
161407
161408
161409
161410

2937
16386
8412
15493
15515
6981
A. WASHING

15184
0017
0022
0215
0009
B. PIERCE
16209
0898
6959
16315
C. EVANS
4477
0870
2276
16509
15452
CetlM. EXCV
1312
0582
0223
6944
13238
6819
6951
2999
0245
1200
2578
15789
0470
0135
F. ANSTEAD
1233
6169
0107
HANI AUTO
6547
0503
15821
6237
15993J. PACKARD

4467
16408
K. BONDY

K. RAGLIN
6467
M. BALOGH
MANPOI'IER

0158
M. POWELL
15550
15550
0253
1485
16461
0911
6057
16407
2986
N. YAX

6660
1937
2997
6893
0309
0585
0913
0327
0319
6953

A & R TOTAL CONSTRUCTION, INC.
A-1 CONCRETE LEVELING
ACO HARDWARE

ADA&1 KURTINAITIS
AEROTROPOLIS DEVELOPMENT
ALLIED SUBSTANCE ABUSE
ALIIA WASHINGTON
AIIERIGAS — YPSILANTI
ANN ARBOR CLEANING SUPPI Y

ANN ARBOR WELDING SUPPLY CO
AUTO VALUE YPSILANTI
8-C CONTRACTORS, INC.
BENJAMIN PIERCE
BRIDGESTONE GOLF INC
BS & A SOITI'IARE
BUTZEL LONG
CAMTRONICS CO&84UNICATIONS CO.
CAROLYN EVANS
CDW-G

CHARTER TONNSHIP OF SUPERIOR
CINCINNATI TIME SYSTEMS
CLEAR RATE COMI&UNICATIONS, INC
COLD CUT KRUISE
COMMUNITY SERVICES EXCAVATING
COMPLETE BATTERY SOURCE
CONGDON'S
CORRIGAN OIL COMPANY

DES MOINES STAIIP MFG. CO.
DUANE CRUTCHER
DUNHAI4'8 SPORTING GOODS
EMERGENCY VEHICLES PLUS
FARMER & UNDERWOOD TRUCKING
FAST SIGNS
FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC,
FLEETPRIDE
FOOTJOY
FOR&IS TRAC, ENTERPRISES
FRED ANSTEAD
GORDON FOOD SERVICE INC.
GOVERNOR BUSINESS SOLUTIONS
GRAINGER
HANI AUTO LLC
HERITAGE NEI'ISPAPERS
HONE DEPOT
IMAGE ONE
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL
J.J. JINKLEHEIMER & CO
JAMIE PACKARD

JOHN DEERE LANDSCAPES
JTW PIPES LLC
KIM BONDY
KIIIBERLEE RAGLIN
LOWES
MADELINE BALOGH
MANPOWER

NARK HAMILTON
NARY POWELL
IIATTA BLAIR, PLC
l4ATTA BLAIR, PLC
MCLAIN AND WINTERS
MICHIGAN CAT
MICHIGAN LINEN SERVICE, INC.
MICHIGAN I'IUNICIPAL LEAGUE
hIICHIGAN RECREATION & PARK
MLIVE MEDIA GROUP
NAPA AUTO PARTS*
NICHOLE YAX

NIKE USA, INC.
OFFICE DEPOT
OFFICE EXPRESS
OFFICE tlAX* IJ434705
ORCHARD, HILTZ I ltCCLIttENT INC
OVERHEAD DOOR COtlPANY

PARKWAY SERVICES, INC.
PINTER'S FLOWERLAND, INC.
PITNEY BOIIES INC. *
QUILL OFFICE SUPPLIES

1,345.70
475. 00
37.91

900.00
20, 000.00

225. 00
230.00
261.17
264. 02
193.44
86. 80

580. 00
295. 00
337.47

5, 035.00
1,340. 00
1,048. 38

10.00
6, 003.00

46. 97
696.15

1, 132.00
112.10
600. 60
248. 80
307.94
734.25
14.50

128.00
200. 00

1,322. 36
623.06
25.00
92.38
65.00

1,208. 08
308.58

1,049. 06
40. 00
36.42
15.34

485. 92
22, 963.25

179.20
935.47
558.00
219.25
371.00
295.00
39.00

390.00
50. 00

128.00
53.11
10.00

4, 046. 64
1,500. 00

20.00
33.00

579.60
9, 775.00

384. 62
1, 665.58

134, 064. 00
40. 00

149.00
120.78
130.00
187.52

1,757.56
497. 69
42. 99

12,700.75
1,349.19

80. 00
91.69

149.99
85. 80



05/08/2013 02:19 PM

User: mharris
DB: Ypsilanti-Twp

CHECK REGISTER FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
CHECK NUMBERS 161268 — 161332

Page: 1/1

Check Date

Bank AP AP

Bank Check Vendor Vendor Name Amount

04/16/2013
04/16/2013
04/16/2013
04/16/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/17/2013
04/19/2013
04/24/2013
04/25/2013
04/25/2013
04/25/2013
04/25/2013
04/25/2013
04/25/2013
04/25/2013
04/25/2013
04/30/2013
04J/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04J/30/2013
0 4J /3 0 /2 0 13
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04J/30/2013
04J/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
Oat/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
04/30/2013
05/01/2013
05/03/2013
05/03/2013

AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP
AP

161268
161269
161270
161271
161272
161273
161274
161275
161276
161277
161278
161279
161280
161281
161282
161283
161284
161285
161286
161287
161288
161289
161290
161291
161292
161293
161294
161295
161296
161297
161298
161299
161300
161301
161302
161303
161304
161305
161306
161307
161308
161309
161310
161311
161312
161313
161314
161315
161316
161317
161318
161319
161320
161321
161322
161323
161324
161325
161326
161327
161328
161329
161330
161331
161332

5049
5049
BCBS
DEARBONNAT
6821
0363
0363
0363
0363
0363
0363
0363
0363
16486
PAETEC
1475
1475
15934
15934
15934
0480
0118
2002
0363
0363
0118
0119
0426
0426
6039
0480
A. COLEIIAN
A. WILSON
A. WELCH

B. BRYANT
C. EBACH
C. PAYNE
C. CLARKE
C. CULP
C. HUNT

D, FOSTER
D, GLATTER
D. WHITE
D. SANBORN

D. STOKES
E. MICHOI'JS
H. CHEVRETJ. REPHOLZJ. NORTHRU

J. OZANICH
J. KIESSEL
J. KNIGHT
K. SLAUGHT
M. FLEttING
II. GANNON

tl. HARGROV

R. VJEJINYA
S. HANLEY
S. DUNN

T. FLEMING
Y. PETERSO
C. HARTIN
16414
0118
13479

BLUE CROSS BLUE SHI
BLUE CROSS BLUE SHI
BLUE CROSS BLUE SHI
DEARBORN NATIONAL L
AT & T
COJ4CAST CABLE
CehICAST CABLE
CONCAST CABLE
CONCAST CABLE
COJICAST CABLE
COMCAST CABLE
COJ&CAST CABLE
COI&CAST CABLE
PAETEC
PAETEC
VERIZON WIRELESS
VERIZON WIRELESS
WASTE IIANAGEtlENT
WASTE IIANAGEIIENT
WASTE MANAGEMENT

YPSILANTI COMIIUNITY
DTE ENERGY
DELTA DENTAL PLAN 0
COMCAST CABLE
COJICAST CABLE
DTE ENERGY
DTE ENERGY**
GUARDIAN ALARM

GUARDIAN ALARtl
WASTE MANAGEtlENT*
YPSILANTI COMMUNITY
AMANDA COLEMAN

ANNIIARIE WILSON
ASTRID VJELCH

BONITA BRYANT
CARL EBACH
CECIL PAYNE
CHARISA CLARKE
CHERYL CULP
CRAIG HUNT

DANIEL FOSTER
DANIEL GLATTER
DARYL WHITE
DEBORAH SANBORN
DELTA STOKES
EDWARD MICHOWSKI
HEATHER CHEVRETTE
JACOB REPHOLZ
JAIIES NORTHRUP

JANE OZANICH
JASON KIESSEL
JESSICA KNIGHT
KYLE SLAUGHTER
IIARIAN FLEI4ING
MICHAEL GANNON

MONIQUE HARGROVE

ROSEMARY WEJINYA
SCOTT HANLEY

SUSAN DUNN

THOMAS FLEMING
YVONNE PETERSON
CHARLIE IIARTIN
TEG ENVIRONttENTAL S
DTE ENERGY
JOLENA NOLLAR

ELD OF MI
ELD OF MI
ELD OF MI
IFE INSURANCE

F hlICHIGAN

ERVICES INC

89, 051.71
15,482. 31
1, 454. 88
2, 765. 86
1,241.16

81.90
211.90
81.90
81.95
89.90

269.29
45. 15

131.90
449. 22

7.27
617.04
70.56

776.33
449. 27

1,278.46
262. 61

21, 638.59
13,359.70

121.74
108.82

1, 632.51
80, 814.40

307.19
70.00

700.00
338.45
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00
14.00

227. 37
2, 303.00

15,934.01
14.00

AP TOTALS

Total of 65
Less 0 Void

Checks:
Checks:

252, 890.35
0.00

Total of 65 Disbursements: 252, 890.35



 

SUPERVISOR REPORT 
 

A. SUPERVISOR STUMBO WILL REPORT ON 
MEETINGS  ATTENDED BY OFFICIALS AND STAFF  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 
FROM: Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor 
 
DATE:  May 2, 2013 
 
RE:  Proclamations for “Multiple Chemical Sensitivity Awareness Week” and  
  “Chemical Awareness Week” 
 
Eva McGuire, a Township resident has asked that May 12-18, 2013 be proclaimed as 
“Multiple Chemical Sensitivity Awareness Week” and “Chemical Awareness Week” in 
Ypsilanti Township. 
 
Please place the attached proclamations on the May 13, 2013 Township Board agenda. 
 
If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
tk 
 
Attachments 
 

Supervisor’s Office 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 481-0617 
Fax:  (734) 484-0002 

www.ytown.org 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
JEAN HALL CURRIE 

STAN ELDRIDGE 
MIKE MARTIN 

SCOTT MARTIN 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

Proclamation 
In Honor of 

Multiple Chemical Sensitivity Awareness 
May 12-18, 2013 

 
WHEREAS, people of all ages have developed the condition known as Multiple Chemical Sensitivity, often 
following either a single massive chemical exposure or repeated low level exposures to chemicals in the 
environment; and 
 
WHEREAS, people with Multiple Chemical Sensitivity frequently also suffer from one or more of the 
overlapping conditions known as Chronic Fatigue/Immune Deficiency Syndrome, Fibromyalgia and Gulf 
War Syndrome; and 
 
WHEREAS, Multiple Chemical Sensitivity is a chronic condition for which there is neither a proven 
treatment nor a cure, that typically affects several major organ systems with multiple symptoms that can 
include, but are not limited to:  difficulty breathing, sleeping and/or concentrating, memory loss, migraines, 
nausea, abdominal pain, chronic fatigue, aching joints and muscles, disorders of the skin and sensory 
dysfunctions; and 
 
WHEREAS, people with Multiple Chemical Sensitivity often have profound problems with health, finances, 
employment, housing, public access and personal relationships; and 
 
WHEREAS, the health of the general population is at risk from chemical exposures which can lead to 
illnesses that are preventable through the reduction or avoidance of chemicals in the air, water and food in 
both indoor and outdoor environments; and 
 
WHEREAS, Multiple Chemical Sensitivity is recognized by the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Social 
Security Administration, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, the Environmental 
Protection Agency and other state and federal governmental agencies and commissions which have 
supported the health and welfare of people with this condition; and 
 
WHEREAS, reasonable accommodations, educational efforts and recognition of Multiple Chemical 
Sensitivity can provide opportunities for people with this condition to enjoy access to work, schooling, 
public facilities and other settings where they can contribute their skills, knowledge, ideas and creativity; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, individuals with Multiple Chemical Sensitivity need the understanding and support of family, 
friends, employers and co-workers, medical professionals, other members of society and governmental 
agencies at all levels to help them cope with the significant and pervasive lifestyle changes imposed by 
this illness; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees does 
hereby proclaim the week of May 12-18, 2013 MULTIPLE CHEMICAL SENSITIVITY AWARENESS 
WEEK in Ypsilanti Township and commend this observance to all Township residents. 
 
Dated and signed this 13th day of May, 2013 
 
 
___________________________     __________________________ 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor     Jean Hall Currie, Trustee 
 
 
___________________________     __________________________ 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk      Stan Eldridge, Trustee 
 
 
___________________________     __________________________ 
Larry J. Doe, Treasurer      Mike Martin, Trustee 
 
 
         __________________________ 
         Scott Martin, Trustee 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

Proclamation 
In Honor of 

Chemical Awareness Week 
May 12-18, 2013 

 
 
WHEREAS, it is important that people are made more aware of the role that chemicals play in their 
daily lives; and 
 
WHEREAS, along with the benefits of chemicals, we need to be aware of the dangers hazardous 
materials pose to our families, especially to our children and youth and of the preventative measures 
that we can take to avoid possible harm; and 
 
WHEREAS, we must encourage cooperation between local emergency planning committees and their 
local business, industrial, retail, service, and farming sectors to increase the involvement of off-site 
emergency planning of hazardous material accidents; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is essential that we work to improve the awareness of local emergency planning 
committees about the chemicals manufactured, used or sold in factories, companies, retail stores and 
farms in their communities. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees does 
hereby proclaim the week of May 12-18, 2013 CHEMICAL AWARENESS WEEK in Ypsilanti Township 
and we encourage all citizens to obtain and share information about the proper uses of chemicals in 
order to ensure a safer future for our Township. 
 
Dated and signed this 13th day of May, 2013 
 
 
___________________________     __________________________ 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor     Jean Hall Currie, Trustee 
 
 
___________________________     __________________________ 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk      Stan Eldridge, Trustee 
 
 
___________________________     __________________________ 
Larry J. Doe, Treasurer      Mike Martin, Trustee 
 
 
         __________________________ 
         Scott Martin, Trustee 



CLERK REPORT                                                     MAY 22, 2013 
Submitted by Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

 
 URBAN COUNTY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE-A meeting was held on Tuesday, April 

23, 2013 and was attended by Clerk Lovejoy Roe. The 2013-2017 Washtenaw 
Urban County Consolidated Plan and the 2013 Annual Plan was approved. The plan 
was approved with support for the Veterans Project to be located at Oakridge 
Apartments on Holmes Rd.   The $500,000 request for funds for this project from the 
Urban County were approved  to be utilized ONLY if the project is allowed by 
MSHDA, the Michigan State Housing and Development Authority to provide housing 
for Veterans only at the Oakridge site.  There are still a lot of deadlines and 
requirements that the investors and owners of Oakridge Apartments must meet to 
secure outside funding and financing for the project. The request for $113,750 
funding for Community Alliance was not approved at the meeting. The funds were 
requested to purchase a house in Ypsilanti Township to be used as a rental home by 
Community Alliance for those with needs of supportive services.   Habitat for 
Humanity requested $231,000 for support of homeownership and down payment 
assistance for homes to be purchased and rehabilitated in Ypsilanti Township and 
this request was approved. 
  

 AATA URBAN CORE TRANSIT MEETING-Clerk Lovejoy Roe and Supervisor 
Stumbo attended a meeting of the AATA Urban Core Transit group on Thursday, 
April 25, 2013 at the Saline City Hall.  The meeting was well attended by members 
of the public.  The municipalities that met to discuss the future of AATA transit in the 
Urban Core communities of Washtenaw County were the Cities of Ann Arbor and 
Saline and the Townships of Pittsfield and Ypsilanti. The members discussed the 
next steps for moving transit forward in Washtenaw County and different models for 
funding. The City of Ypsilanti has petitioned the AATA Board to join the board and 
seek funding to continue the transit program in the City of Ypsilanti.  It was 
discussed that the City of Ypsilanti as a part of AATA may have a millage election in 
November, 2013 to ask City residents to support funding AATA service in the City of 
Ypsilanti. Discussions are still underway with the Urban Core municipal leaders to 
plan for long term transit improvements and support in Washtenaw County. 
 

 2012 AUDIT-The Charter Township of Ypsilanti 2012 Audit is almost complete and 
all deadlines are being met to deliver the Audit to the State of Michigan.  Once the 
Audit is filed a presentation will be made to the Township Board. 
 

 HUMAN RESOURCE AND ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT COLLABORATION-
Currently the Accounting Department is providing support to the Human Resource 
Department and assisting with seasonal hiring and pension support. Both 
departments are working on ways the Accounting Department may be able to 
provide additional support to the Human Resource Department.  
 



 STATE REPRESENTATIVE DAVE RUTLEDGE-Supervisor Stumbo, Treasurer Doe 
and Clerk Lovejoy Roe met with Representative Rutledge on Monday, May 6, 2013 
to discuss issues facing township residents that state government has impacted. 
Representative Rutledge shared some ideas regarding road funding and schools.  
 

 WAYFINDING MEETING-Treasurer Doe and Clerk Lovejoy Roe met with the 
Visitors and Convention Bureau and City of Ypsilanti Representatives on Monday, 
May 6, 2013 to discuss how the Township, City and the Visitors and Convention 
Bureau could work together to seek grants for establishing  common Wayfinding  
signs for directions in the greater Ypsilanti community.  
 

 REIMAGINE WASHTENAW-Clerk Lovejoy Roe attended a meeting on Wednesday, 
May 8, 2013 with others from Pittsfield Township and the Cities of Ann Arbor and 
Ypsilanti to continue plans regarding the improvements on Washtenaw Avenue for 
transit and economic development.  Currently a Right of Way Study is being 
conducted and public workshops have been scheduled on May 28, 29, 30 and 31, 
2013 at various times & locations along the Washtenaw Ave. corridor.  (Please see 
attached Flyer) Ypsilanti Township will be preparing a mailing to announce the public 
workshops and encourage township residents and businesses to attend and give 
their input.  A ribbon cutting for the MDOT Multi-Use Path at US23/Washtenaw Ave. 
is scheduled for Friday, June 7 at 10 AM.  The public is encouraged to attend and try 
out first-hand the new multi-purpose paths.   
 

 





 

TREASURER REPORT 
 

THERE IS NO WRITTEN TREASURER REPORT 



 

TRUSTEE REPORT 
 

THERE IS NO WRITTEN TRUSTEE REPORT 



 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2013 BUDGET AMENDMENT #8

May 13, 2013

Total Increase $973,079.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $269,420.00
Net Revenues $269,420.00

Expenditures: Capital Outlay - Court 101-970-000-971.003 $269,420.00
Net Expenditures $269,420.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $47,110.00
Net Revenues $47,110.00

Expenditures: Contribution - Land Bank 101-950-000-969.011 $47,110.00
Net Expenditures $47,110.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $2,709.00
Net Revenues $2,709.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out-PTO&Sicktime 101-171-000-708.004 $2,709.00
Net Expenditures $2,709.00

Revenues: State Grant Revenue 101-000-000-569.019 $653,840.00
Net Revenues $653,840.00

Expenditures: Liberty Square Grant Project 101-950-000-969.013 $653,840.00
Net Expenditures $653,840.00

Total Increase $76,988.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 212-000-000-699.000 $76,988.00
Net Revenues $76,988.00

Expenditures: Park Improvement 212-970-000-975.795 $76,988.00
Net Expenditures $76,988.00

Total Increase $4,000.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 248-000-000-699.000 $4,000.00

Net Revenues $4,000.00

Expenditures: Equipment 248-248-000-977.000 $3,000.00
Uniforms-New and Badges 248-248-000-741.001 $1,000.00

Net Expenditures $4,000.00

Increase Computer Equipment and Uniforms for rental inspection personnel. This will be funded by an Appropriation of the Prior Year Fund 
Balance.

Increase State Grant revenue and Liberty Square - Grant Project for the grant  the Township is receiving from Michigan Land Bank Fast Authority 
to Demolish the Liberty Square complex. This will be funded by a State Grant.

212 - BIKE, SIDEWALK, RECREATION, ROAD AND 

         GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND (BSR II)

Increase Park Improvements for repair, design and construction to prevent soil erosion at Hydro Park.  This will be funded by an Appropriation of 
he Prior Year Fund Balance.

248- RENTAL INSPECTION FUND

Increase Salary - PTO Payout for employee request of payout of PTO hours per contract.   This will be funded by an Appropriation of the Prior Year 
Fund Balance.

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND

Increase Capital Outlay for roof replacement of the 14B District portion of the Civic Center Building.   This will be funded by an Appropriation of the 
Prior Year Fund Balance.

Increase Contribution - Land Bank to purchase property located at 953 E Michigan Avenue (aka Ypsilanti Mobile Village) under "Right of First 
Refusal".   This will be funded by an Appropriation of the Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2013 Budget (#8): 
 
 

 
Move to increase the General Fund budget by $973,079 to $8,979,433 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 
 

Move to increase the BSR II Bike, Sidewalk, Road and General Operations Fund by 
$76,988 to $3,633,952 and approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 
 
Move to increase the Rental Inspection Fund budget by $4,000 to $106,172 and approve 

the department line item changes as outlined. 
 
 
 
 
 



Zimbra nwyrybk@ytown. org

3an Hale Playground Adventures

From ".Keith 3ason &keithpauljasonOgmail. corn&

Subject: Jan Hale Playground Adventures

To: Nancy Wyrybkowski &nwyrybk@ytown. org&

Cc:Karen Lovejoy Roe
&klovejoyroeOytown. org&, Brenda Stumbo
&bstumbo@ytown. org&, Lonnie Scott
& IscottOytown. org&

Mon, May 06, 2013 09:13PM

Hello Nancy,

We had our park commission meeting tonight and the group voted to put forth

the recommendation for the township board to put in the sign to commemorate
"3an Hale Playground Adventures". Is there any way that this could get on the

agenda for the board meeting next weekend as it will be the only meeting in the
month of May.

The cost of the sign should not exceed $4,000.

Please let me know if you have any questions.





Estimate

Printed:

 18180

Page 1 of 1

5/6/2013   5:36:11PM

FASTSIGNS
3510 Washtenaw Ave.
Ann Arbor, MI.   48104
ph: 734-677-1500

734-677-5656fax:
Email:

Estimate Date: 5/6/2013   5:35:51PM

Customer: ph:

Keith Jason

(734) 487-8559

Contact:

Keith P. Jason

Sales Person: Mark Greer Golda
Clerk: Mark Greer Golda

Description:

Customer:  22618 

Janalyn G. Hale Sign

Dear Keith:

Sincerely,

Mark Greer Golda
Customer Service Rep

Product Qty Sides H x W Unit Cost Totals

1 1 36 x 24 $4,730.86 1 $4,730.86 Dimensional Signage *
Description: Subcontracted Dimensional Sign Products. In cast Bronze.  

To include a photo of Janalyn and the above text. Also to 
inclute  the frame, mounting post and post cap( This is a very 
rought estimate and will change as more infomation is 
acquired)

WhiteColor:

Text: Janalyn G. Hale Playground Adventures

In recognition of a woman who dedicated her life to bringing out the best in others and played an instrumental role 
in creating a place where children of all abilities could play together.

Notes:

Line Item Total: $4,730.86 

Subtotal: $4,730.86 
Taxes: $283.85 
Total: $5,014.71 

Deposit Required: $2,507.36 

Keith P. Jason

Ann Arbor, MI.
Received/Accepted By:

Bill To:
Keith Jason

/    /

More than fast. More than signs.
SYSTEM\FASTSIGNS_CRYSTAL_Estimate01



McLAIN & WINTERS 
ATTORNEYS AND COUNSELORS AT LAW 

61 N. HURON 
YPSILANTI, MICHIGAN 48197 

(734) 481-1120  
DENNIS O. McLAIN                                                                                                                         FAX (734) 481-8909 
WM. DOUGLAS WINTERS                                                                                                              E-MAIL: mcwinlaw@gmail.com 
ANGELA B. KING 

May 6, 2013 
 

Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Larry J. Doe, Treasurer  
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Dr. 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
 
 
 
Re: Request of Township Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe to Place on the  

May 13, 2013 Board Agenda Authorization for Supervisor  
Brenda L. Stumbo and Clerk Roe to Execute All Documents Required 
by HUD so as to Allow the Township to Participate in HUD’s  
“First Look Program” for Homeowners, Non-Profits and 
Governmental Agencies that Would Allow the Township to Acquire 
Foreclosed Properties Directly from HUD 

 
 
 
Dear Board Members:  
 
As a follow-up to my previous letters dated May 3, 2013 addressed to HUD 
representative Bottoms-Yisrael and the Township  Board regarding HUD’s  
“First Look Program” that would allow the Township to acquire foreclosed 
properties directly from HUD which in turn can be “resold” to “Habitat for 
Humanity,” this will confirm the receipt of Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe’s email 
regarding the placement of this item on the May 13, 2013 Board Agenda.   
 
For all of the reasons previously forth in my May 3rd letters, I would certainly 
appreciate if this item could be placed on the Board Agenda so as to allow the 
Township to file the required forms which includes the filing and execution of  
the  “IRS Letter 147c or IRS Official Document reflecting business name  
and EIN” which I believe is the Employer Identification Number.  According to the 
information I have obtained to date, once the required Application is filed with 
HUD, the “ . . . processing time is a minimum of 2 weeks.”   

mailto:mwatty@voyager.net


Township Board 
Re:  HUD Vacant Homes  
May 6, 2013 
Page 2  
 
 
Thus, since we only have one (1) board meeting in the month of May, it would be 
helpful to have this Application in place now as opposed to having to wait another 
month.   
 
If after review of this correspondence you have any questions or I can be of 
further assistance, please contact me.  
 
Very truly yours, 

 
Wm. Douglas Winters 
dc 
 
cc: Trustees 

Mike Radzik 
 Ron Fulton 
 Joe Lawson 
 Bill Elling   
 Eric Copeland, Fire Chief 
 Vic Chevrette, Fire Marshal  

Dennis O. McLain  
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
RESOLUTION NO. 2013-14 

 
Economic Vitality Incentive Program (EVIP) Part 3  

 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Michigan has enacted the Publicly Funded Health 
Insurance Contributions Act, Act 152 of 2011, (the “Act”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Act provides for limits on the amount that a local unit of 
government may pay or contribute to a medical benefit plan for its employees; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti has elected to comply with the 
provisions of the Act and avoid penalties for non-compliance; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,  that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
will comply with the hard cap limits contained in Section 3 of Act 152 of 2011. 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 1 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
RESOLUTION 2013-15 

 
 

Authorizing the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
to Exercise its “First Right of Refusal” and to 
Purchase from Washtenaw County Treasurer 
Catherine McClary Acting in her Capacity as  

the Foreclosing Governmental Unit Under the 
Authority of the General Property Tax Act the 
Real Property Located at 953 E Michigan Ave 

Ypsilanti Township, Michigan 
 

  
 WHEREAS, on February 20, 2013  Washtenaw County Circuit Court 

Judge David S. Swartz pursuant to the Petition filed by Washtenaw County 

Treasurer Catherine McClary, Acting in her capacity as the Foreclosing 

Governmental Unit (FGU) under the Authority of the General Property Tax Act 

(GPTA) entered a “Judgment of Foreclosure and Order”  (Order) concerning 

the foreclosure of real property located in Washtenaw County due to unpaid 

delinquent taxes a copy of said Order being attached hereto and incorporated by 

reference and labeled Exhibit 1; and 

 WHEREAS, one of the properties listed in the “Judgment of 

Foreclosure and Order” included the real property located at  

953 E. Michigan Ave. formerly known as “Ypsilanti Mobile Village” which 

consists of approximately 6.52 acres with the legal description being attached 

hereto and incorporated by reference and labeled Exhibit 2; and 

 WHEREAS, on April 4, 2013 Washtenaw County  

Treasurer Catherine McClary filed in the Washtenaw County Register of Deeds 

at Liber 4969 Page 351 the “Notice of Judgment and Foreclosure” confirming 

that the Judgment of Foreclosure and Order entered by Circuit Court Judge 

Swartz on February 20, 2013 “. . . became final and unappealable on March 

13, 2013,”  

a copy of said Notice of Judgment of Foreclosure being attached hereto and 

incorporated by reference and labeled Exhibit 3; and 



 2 

 WHEREAS, the Court of Appeals for the State of Michigan in an 

unanimous decision released for publication on April 5, 2011 entitled   

“City of Bay City vs Bay County Treasurer” held that under the GPTA that “. . 

. the determination of a proper purpose for the purchase of  

tax-delinquent property is a legislative function, vesting such 

determinations as arose in this case with Plaintiff’s council. Furthermore, 

because MCL 211.78(m)(1) creates a mandatory legal duty on Defendant’s 

part to sell the property to Plaintiff granting him no discretion to decide not 

to sale such property, the statute does not empower a county treasurer . . . 

to make an independent determination as to a municipality’s professed 

‘public’ purpose” a copy of the Court of Appeals decision being attached hereto 

and incorporated by reference and labeled Exhibit 4;  and 

 WHEREAS, from 2007 through 2013 the commercial tax base of the 

Township has decreased $126,293,103.00 in “State Equalized Value” and has 

also suffered a $52,552,646.00 decrease in taxable value for the same time 

period; and 

 WHEREAS, the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees has determined 

and hereby finds that the exercise of its “First Right of Refusal” to acquire the 

commercial property located at 953 East  

Michigan Ave., constitutes a “Public Purpose” as set forth in the Court of 

Appeals case entitled “City of Bay City vs Bay County Treasurer” since it is 

imperative that in order for the Township to continue to provide essential public 

services to its residents to promote and protect the public health, safety and 

welfare of the Township that the Township continues in its ongoing efforts to 

rebuild and redevelop the Township’s commercial tax base; and specifically this 

subject property given its strategic location along the East Michigan Avenue 

corridor which is one of the major gateways into the Township; and  

  WHEREAS, the Township expended significant financial resources in an 

effort to abate the Public Nuisance that was created at 953 East Michigan Ave. 

over a number of years which included but was not limited to drug trafficking, 

prostitution, felonious assaults, etc. etc.  



 3 

Those efforts culminated in a series of Court Orders being issued by   

Washtenaw County Circuit Court Judge Donald E. Shelton which included the 

removal of all mobile home units from said property along with an  

“Order Declaring Two Structures Remaining at Ypsilanti Mobile Village a 

Continuing Public Nuisance” which was entered by the Court on December 

21, 2011; and   

  WHEREAS, the Township has been advised by the Washtenaw 

County Treasurer’s Office that the minimum bid price for the property located at 

953 East Michigan Ave. is $47,110.00; 

 NOW, THEREFORE THE YPSILANTI CHARTER TOWNSHIP BOARD 

OF TRUSTEES HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  

 1. That the Township hereby finds and determines that the exercise of 

its “First Right of Refusal” pursuant to the General Property Tax Act as further 

defined in the Court of Appeals case entitled  

“City of Bay City vs Bay County Treasurer” to purchase the commercial 

property located at 953 East Michigan Ave. constitutes a  

“Public Purpose” since it is imperative that in order for the Township to 

continue to provide essential public services to its residents to promote and 

protect the public health, safety and welfare of the Township that the Township 

continues in its ongoing efforts to rebuild and redevelop the Township’s 

commercial tax base. 

 2. That the Township hereby notifies Washtenaw County Treasurer 

Catherine McClary Acting in her Capacity as the Foreclosing Governmental Unit 

that the Township desires to purchase 953 East Michigan Ave. under the 

Township’s “First Right of Refusal” for a minimum bid which per the 

Washtenaw County Treasurer’s Office is $47,110.00.    

  3. That the Township authorizes the payment of $47,110.00 for the 

purpose of acquiring 953 E. Michigan Ave. pursuant to the Township’s  

“First Right of Refusal” for the “Public Purpose” as defined herein.  













































CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 
To:  Board of Trustees 
 

From:  Mike Radzik 
  Office of Community Standards 
 

Re: Request to Approve Grant Contract with the Michigan Land Bank Fast Track 
Authority for the Demolition of Liberty Square in the amount of $653,840 

 

Date:  May 7, 2013 
 

Copy To: Javonna Neel, Accounting Director 
  Doug Winters, Attorney 
 
 
Last year, the Office of Community Standards applied for a grant through the Michigan Blight 

Elimination Program to facilitate the demolition of 151 townhouses at Liberty Square to comply 

with a circuit court order that declared the complex to be a public nuisance.  A preliminary 

award was made on February 15, 2013, subject to a feasibility review. 

The feasibility review of the Liberty Square grant application has been completed and the 

consultant overseeing the Blight Elimination Program has recommended final approval.  A 

proposed contract has been received from the Michigan Land Bank Fast Track Authority, which 

has been reviewed by legal counsel and found to be in proper form. 

I respectfully request that the Board of Trustees approve the attached agreement between the 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti and the Michigan Land Bank Fast Track Authority for the demolition of 

Liberty Square in the amount of $653,840 and authorize signatures as indicated. 

Thank you for your thoughtful consideration.  Please contact me with questions or concerns. 



 1 

GRANT CONTRACT FOR DEMOLITION 
BETWEEN THE 

MICHIGAN LAND BANK FAST TRACK AUTHORITY 
AND CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  

 
This Grant Contract (“Contract”) is made between the Michigan Land Bank Fast Track Authority 
(MLB), and Charter Township of Ypsilanti (“Grantee”). 
 

I.  PURPOSE AND PROJECT SCOPE  
 
 
PROJECT NAME: Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

PROJECT NUMBER: MLBBE-2013-05 

 

AMOUNT OF GRANT: $653,840.00 
 
(A)  The purpose of this Contract is to provide funding in the amount of Six Hundred Fifty Three 
Thousand Eight Hundred Forty and No/100 Dollars ($653,840.00) in exchange for work to be 
performed for the project.  The MLB is authorized to provide grant assistance for demolition 
pursuant to 2012 PA 296 and an Intergovernmental Agreement between the MLB, the Michigan 
Department of Human Services and the Michigan State Housing Development Authority.  MLB 
has retained ADR Consultants, LLC to perform project management on its behalf.  Legislative 
appropriation of funds for grant assistance is set forth in 2012 PA 296.  This Contract is subject to 
the terms and conditions specified herein. 
 
(B)  This Contract and its appendices constitute the entire Contract between the MLB and the 
Grantee and may be modified only by written agreement between the MLB and the Grantee. 
 
(C)  The scope of this project is limited to the activities specified in Appendix A, and such 
activities as are authorized by the MLB under this Contract.  Any change in project scope requires 
prior written approval in accordance with Section IV, Changes, in this Contract.  
 
(D)  By acceptance of this Contract, the Grantee commits to complete the project identified in 
Appendix A within the time period allowed for in this Contract and in accordance with the terms 
and conditions of this Contract.  
 
II.  CONTRACT PERIOD 
 
Contract Start Date (date executed by MLB): May 13, 2013 Contract End Date: July 13, 2014 
 
Upon signature by the MLB, the Contract shall be effective from the Start Date until the End Date 
specified above.  The MLB shall have no responsibility to provide funding to the Grantee for 
project work performed except between the Start Date and the End Date specified above.  Unless 
otherwise agreed to in writing, expenditures made by the Grantee prior to the Start Date or after the 
End Date of this Contract are not eligible for payment under this Contract. 



 2 

III.  CONTACTS 
 
GRANTEE CONTACT: 
 
Brenda Stumbo/Township Supervisor 
Karen Lovejoy Roe/Township Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
(734) 544-3730 
bstumbo@ytown.org 
klovejoyroe@ytown.org 
Tax ID Number: 38-6007433 

MLB CONTACT: 
 
Jeff Huntington, Property Specialist 
300 N. Washington Sq. 
Lansing, MI 48913 
517-335-8430 
huntingtonj@michigan.gov 

 
 
ADR CONTACT: 
 
Barry Ellentuck, President 
ADR Consultants, LLC 
6364 Ramwyck Court, Suite C 
West Bloomfield, Michigan 48322 
248-318-9424  
barryse@adrllc.net 
 
IV.  CHANGES 
 
Any changes to this Contract shall be requested by the Grantee in writing to ADR and approved 
in writing by the MLB.  The MLB reserves the right to deny requests for changes to the Contract 
or to the appendices.  No changes can be implemented without approval by the MLB. 
 
V.  GRANTEE DELIVERABLES AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 
The Grantee shall submit deliverables and follow reporting requirements specified in the 
Program-Specific Requirements section and in Appendix A of this Contract.  All deliverables in 
Appendix A, unless otherwise stated in this Contract, shall be made to ADR at the address set 
forth in Section III, or electronically as ADR may provide. 
 
VI.  GRANTEE RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
(A)  The Grantee agrees to abide by all local, State, and federal laws, rules, ordinances, and 
regulations in the performance of this grant. 
 
(B)  All local, State, and federal permits, if required, are the responsibility of the Grantee.  Award 
of this grant is not a guarantee of permit approval by the State. 
 

mailto:bstumbo@ytown.org
mailto:klovejoyroe@ytown.org


 3 

(C)  The Grantee shall be solely responsible to pay all taxes, if any, that arise from the Grantee’s 
receipt of this grant. 
 
(D)  The Grantee is responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely 
completion, and coordination of all designs, drawings, specifications, reports, and other services 
furnished by the Grantee or its subcontractor under this Contract.  The Grantee or its 
subcontractor shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors, omissions, or 
other deficiencies in designs, drawings, specifications, reports, or other services. 
 
(E)  The MLB’s approval of drawings, designs, specifications, reports, and incidental work or 
materials furnished hereunder shall not in any way relieve the Grantee of responsibility for the 
technical adequacy of the work.  The MLB’s review, approval, acceptance, or payment for any 
of the services shall not be construed as a waiver of any rights under this Contract or a cause of 
action arising out of the performance of this Contract. 
 
(F)  The Grantee acknowledges that it is a crime to knowingly and willingly file false 
information with the MLB for the purpose of obtaining this Contract or any payment under the 
Contract and that any such filing may subject the Grantee, its agents, and/or employees to 
criminal and civil prosecution and/or termination of the grant.   
 
VII.  USE OF MATERIAL 
 
Unless otherwise specified in this Contract, the Grantee may release information or material 
developed under this Contract, provided it is acknowledged that the MLB funded all or a portion 
of its development. 
 
The MLB retains an irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, and use in whole or in part, and 
authorize others to do so, any copyrightable material submitted under this Contract whether or not 
the material is copyrighted by the Grantee or another person.  The Grantee will only submit 
materials that the MLB can use in accordance with this paragraph. 
 
Unless otherwise specified in this Contract, the Grantee may not patent products or processes 
developed under this Contract. 
 
VIII.  ASSIGNABILITY 
 
The Grantee shall not assign this Contract or assign or delegate any of its duties or obligations 
under this Contract to any other party without the prior written consent of the MLB.  The MLB 
does not assume responsibility regarding the contractual relationships between the Grantee and any 
subcontractor. 
 
IX.  SUBCONTRACTS 
 
The MLB reserves the right to deny the use of any consultant, contractor, associate, or other 
personnel to perform any portion of the project.  The Grantee is solely responsible for all 
contractual activities performed under this Contract.  Further, the MLB will consider the Grantee 



 4 

to be the sole point of contact with regard to contractual matters, including payment of any and 
all charges resulting from the anticipated Grant.  All subcontractors used by the Grantee in 
performing the project shall be subject to the provisions of this Contract and shall be qualified to 
perform the duties required.  Contractors must be procured through a competitive procurement 
process. 
 
X.  NON-DISCRIMINATION 
 
The Grantee shall comply with the Elliott Larsen Civil Rights Act, 1976 PA 453, as amended, 
MCL 37.2101 et seq., the Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act, 1976 PA 220, as amended, 
MCL 37.1101 et seq., and all other federal, State, and local fair employment practices and equal 
opportunity laws.  Grantee covenants that it shall not discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment, to be employed in the performance of this Contract, with respect to 
his or her hire, tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment, or any matter directly or 
indirectly related to employment, because of his or her race, religion, color, national origin, age, 
sex, height, weight, marital status, or physical or mental disability that is unrelated to the 
individual’s ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position.  The Grantee agrees to 
include in every subcontract entered into for the performance of this Contract this covenant not 
to discriminate in employment.  A breach of this covenant is a material breach of this Contract.   
 
XI.  UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICES 
 
The Grantee shall comply with the Employers Engaging in Unfair Labor Practices Act, 
1980 PA 278, as amended, MCL 423.321 et seq.   
 
XII.  LIABILITY  
 
(A)  The Grantee, not the MLB or ADR, is responsible for all liabilities as a result of claims, 
judgments, or costs arising out of activities to be carried out by the Grantee under this Contract, if 
the liability is caused by the Grantee, any subcontractor, or anyone employed by the Grantee. 
 
(B)  All liability as a result of claims, demands, costs, or judgments arising out of activities to be 
carried out by the MLB in the performance of this Contract is the responsibility of the MLB and 
not the responsibility of the Grantee if the liability is caused by any MLB employee or agent.  
 
(C)  In the event that a liability or liabilities arise as a result of activities conducted jointly by the 
Grantee and the MLB in fulfillment of their responsibilities under this Contract, such liability is 
held by the Grantee and the MLB in relation to each party’s responsibilities under these joint 
activities.  
 
(D)  Nothing in this contract should be construed as a waiver of any governmental immunity by the 
Grantee, the MLB, its agencies, or employees as provided by statute or court decisions.  
 
XIII.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
No government employee, or member of the legislative, judicial, or executive branches, or member 



 5 

of the Grantee’s Board of Directors, its employees, partner agencies, or their families shall benefit 
financially from any part of this Contract. 
 
XIV.  ANTI-LOBBYING  
 
Grantee shall not use any of the grant funds awarded in this Contract for the purpose of lobbying 
as defined in the State of Michigan’s lobbying statute, MCL 4.415(2):  “‘Lobbying’ means 
communicating directly with an official of the executive branch of State government or an 
official in the legislative branch of State government for the purpose of influencing legislative or 
administrative action.”  The Grantee shall not use any of the grant funds awarded in this Contract 
for the purpose of litigation against the MLB.  Further, the Grantee shall require that language of 
the assurances in this section be included in the award documents of all subawards at all tiers. 
 
XV.  DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION 
 
By signing this Contract, the Grantee certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it, its 
agents, and its subcontractor:  
 

(1) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, and declared ineligible 
or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or the State. 

 
(2) Have not within a three-year period preceding this Contract been convicted of or had a 

civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, MLB, or 
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction, as defined in 45 CFR 1185; 
violation of federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, 
forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or 
receiving stolen property.  

 
(3) Are not presently indicted or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government 

entity (federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
subsection (2). 

 
(4) Have not within a three-year period preceding this Contract had one or more public 

transactions (federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default. 
 

(5) Will comply with all applicable requirements of all other State or federal laws, executive 
orders, regulations, and policies governing this program. 

 
XVI.  AUDIT AND ACCESS TO RECORDS 
 
Pursuant to MCL 18.1470 the MLB reserves the right to conduct a programmatic and financial 
audit of the project, and the MLB may withhold payment until the audit is satisfactorily completed.  
The Grantee is required to maintain all pertinent records and evidence pertaining to this Contract, 
including grant and any required matching funds, in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and other procedures specified by the MLB.  The financial and accounting 



 6 

records associated with this Contract shall be made available to MLB, its designee, and the auditor 
general, upon request, during the terms of this Contract and any extension of this Contract and for 
three years after the Contract End Date or final payment under the Contract, whichever is later.  
The Grantee will provide proper facilities for such access and inspection.   
 
XVII.  INSURANCE 
 
The Grantee must comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws while engaging in activities 
authorized under this Contract. 
 
XVIII.  OTHER SOURCES OF FUNDING 
 
The Grantee guarantees that any claims made to the MLB under this Contract must not be 
financed by any source other than the MLB under the terms of this Contract.  If funding is 
received through any other source, the Grantee agrees to delete from Grantee’s billings, or to 
immediately refund to the MLB, the total amount representing such duplication of funding. 
 
XIX.  COMPENSATION 
 
(A)  The MLB will pay the Grantee a total amount not to exceed the amount specified in Section 1 
of this Contract, and only for expenses incurred for this project.  Grantee may not expend more 
than $0.00 for administrative costs.  All other costs necessary to complete the project are the sole 
responsibility of the Grantee.    
 
(B)  Unless otherwise agreed to in writing, expenses incurred by the Grantee prior to the Start Date 
or after the End Date of this Contract are not allowed under the Contract.  
 
(C)  The MLB will approve payment requests after approval of reports and related documentation as 
required under this Contract.    
 
(D)  The MLB reserves the right to request additional information necessary to substantiate 
payment requests.   
 
(E)  Payments under this Contract will be processed by Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT).  The 
Grantee shall register to receive payments by EFT at the Contract & Payment Express Web Site 
(http://www.mi.gov/cpexpress). 
 
(F)  Final payment will be withheld by the MLB until the project is completed in accordance with 
Section XX, Closeout, and Appendix A. 
 
XX.  CLOSEOUT 
 
(A)  A determination of project completion, which may include a site inspection and an audit, shall 
be made by the MLB after the Grantee has satisfactorily completed the activities and deliverables 
described in Appendix A. 
 



 7 

 
(B)  Upon issuance of final payment from the MLB, the Grantee releases the MLB of all claims 
against the MLB arising under this Contract.  Unless otherwise provided in this Contract or by 
law, final payment under this Contract shall not constitute a waiver of the MLB’s claims against 
the Grantee. 
 
(C)  The Grantee shall immediately refund to the MLB any payments in excess of the costs 
allowed by this Contract.  
 
XXI.  CANCELLATION 
 
This Contract may be canceled by the MLB, upon 30 days written notice, due to Executive 
Order, budgetary reduction, other lack of funding, upon request by the Grantee, or upon mutual 
agreement by the MLB and Grantee.  The MLB reserves the right to provide just and equitable 
compensation to the Grantee for all satisfactory work completed under this Contract. 
 
XXII.  TERMINATION 
 
(A)  This Contract may be terminated by the MLB as follows: 

 
(1)  Upon 30 days written notice to the Grantee: 

 
a. If the Grantee fails to comply with the terms and conditions of the Contract, or with 

the requirements of the authorizing legislation cited on page 1 or other applicable law 
or rules;   

b.  If the Grantee knowingly and willingly presents false information to the MLB for the 
purpose of obtaining this Contract or any payment under this Contract; 

c. If the MLB finds that the Grantee, or any of the Grantee’s agents or representatives, 
offered or gave gratuities, favors, or gifts of monetary value to any official, employee, 
or agent of the MLB in an attempt to secure a subcontract or favorable treatment in 
awarding, amending, or making any determinations related to the performance of this 
Contract; 

d. During the 30-day written notice period, the MLB shall also withhold payment for any 
findings under subparagraphs a through c, above; or 

e. If the Grantee or any subcontractor, manufacturer, or supplier of the Grantee appears 
in the register of persons engaging in unfair labor practices that is compiled by the 
Michigan Department of Labor and Economic Growth or its successor.   

 
(2)  Immediately and without further liability to the MLB if the Grantee, or any agent of the 

Grantee, or any agent of any subcontract is: 
 

a. Convicted of a criminal offense incident to the application for or performance of a 
State, public, or private contract or subcontract; 

b. Convicted of a criminal offense, including but not limited to any of the following: 
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, receiving 



 8 

stolen property, or attempting to influence a public employee to breach the ethical 
conduct standards for State of Michigan employees; 

c. Convicted under State or federal antitrust statutes;  
d. Convicted of any other criminal offense that, in the sole discretion of the MLB, 

reflects on the Grantee’s business integrity; or 
e. Added to the federal or State Suspension and Debarment list. 

 
(B)  If a grant is terminated, the MLB reserves the right to require the Grantee to repay all or a 
portion of funds received under this Contract. 
 
XXIII.  NOTIFICATION OF DELAYS 
 
The Grantee shall inform the MLB’s Contact of any delays in the start-up of the project and any 
delays in progress toward completion of the project.  Any change to the Contract End Date must 
be approved by MLB as set forth in Section IV. 
 
The individuals signing below certify by their signatures that they are authorized to sign this Grant 
Contract on behalf of their agencies, and that the parties will fulfill the terms of this Contract, 
including the attached Appendix A, and used only as set forth herein. 
 
XXIV.  PUBLICITY 
 
Grantee shall cooperate with MLB and coordinate with MLB for all press releases and public 
events regarding the projects, including, but not limited to, being available for and attending press 
events for state and local representatives. 
 
FOR THE GRANTEE: 
 
_______________________________________ _______________________________ 
Signature          Date 
 
______________________________________ 
Name and Title (typed or printed) 
 
_______________________________________ _______________________________ 
Signature          Date 
 
______________________________________ 
Name and Title (typed or printed) 
 
 
FOR THE MLB: 
 
_______________________________________ _______________________________ 
Kim Homan      Date 
Executive Director 



 1 

PROJECT 
SCOPE AND REQUIREMENTS   

APPENDIX A 
 

 
I.  PROJECT LOCATION  
 
The Grantee agrees to perform or to assume responsibility for the performance of all functions 
and tasks contained herein in order to complete the demolition of the properties at the locations 
listed in Appendix B. 
 
 
II.  PROJECT REQUIREMENTS AND SCOPE 
 
The Grantee shall complete demolition and clearance of structures and contents at the properties 
identified in Section I, whether above or below ground on each site by the Contract End Date.     
 

1. The Grantee shall carry out the demolition and clearance activities in accordance with 
the requirements set forth in this Project Scope. 

 
2. The Grantee shall coordinate demolition and clearance activities, ensuring that all 

approvals and permits are in place prior to the start of work.  
 
3. The Grantee shall ensure compliance with all requirements related to lead-based paint, 

asbestos and other hazardous materials and notify the appropriate state or local 
agencies or Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) if required by 
law.  Further details and requirements are located on the following websites; 
http://michigan.gov/deq/0,1607,7-135-3310_4106-11856--,00.html , 
http://michigan.gov/deq/0,1607,7-135-3307_29693_30031---,00.html, 
http://www.hud.gov/offices/lead and http://www.epa.gov/asbestos. 

 
4. Demolition includes the complete tearing down and razing of a structure and the 

deconstruction of a structure in compliance with all local and state laws and 
regulations. 
 

5. Clearance of sites includes removal and disposal of all materials and debris in 
compliance with federal, state or local requirements; providing for erosion control; and 
other incidentals necessary to satisfactorily complete the structure removal.  All debris 
shall go to a licensed sanitary landfill.  Copies of the landfill receipts for every load 
removed from the project site must be maintained for each day and made available for 
inspection as requested. 

 
6. ADR will establish specific reporting requirements for the project. 

 
 

http://www.epa.gov/asbestos


 2 

7. The Grantee is responsible for: 

a. Providing qualified personnel, equipment, materials and other resources necessary to 
perform activities in order to complete demolition and clearance of all the properties 
identified in Section I by the Contract End Date. 
  

b. Ensuring adequate quality control. 
  

c. Maintaining documents and records related to all the activities carried out under the 
Contract.  The Grantee shall maintain current, accurate and complete records 
according to and in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local 
requirements and Section XVI of the Contract.  Identifying a Project Manager or 
designated representative who will serve as the Grantee’s contact person and who has 
final authority for the Grantee on all matters relating to the contract. 

 
d. Coordinating with ADR on matters relating to the project requirements, including 

completion, or any items that require immediate attention or that impact on the results 
or quality of the work to be performed. 
 

e. Accuracy of the work performed.  Grantee is required to make all necessary revisions 
or corrections resulting from errors and omissions on the part of the Grantee without 
additional Funding.  Acceptance of the work by MLB will not relieve the Grantee of 
the responsibility for subsequent correction of any such errors and omissions. 

 
f. Reporting the status of the project to ADR in accordance with the reporting 

requirements established by ADR for the Grantee’s project.  The reports will require, 
but not be limited to, the following information. 

i. Weekly Work in Process report  
ii. Signed approved invoices 

iii. Landfill receipts 
iv. Procurement documents - RFP, Contracts, Bid Tabs 

 
III.  PROJECT COMPLETION 
 
The Grantee shall submit to ADR, in a timely manner, two (2) complete copies of a 
Request for Payment form that includes all supporting documentation.  The format for 
the Request for Payment form is Appendix C. 

 
The MLB will make final payment after the project is complete.  Project completion means all of 
the following: 
 

(1)  All structures identified in this Appendix B have been demolished in accordance with 
the project requirements. 

 
(2)  The Grantee has submitted the final Request for Payment form, including all 
supporting documentation.  



 3 

The MLB shall make a determination of project completion based on the recommendation of 
ADR, and any review of the project and the project file the MLB deem necessary in its sole 
discretion, including site inspections. 
 
Payment of funds by MLB is based on satisfactory completion of work and successful closeout. 



Page 1 of 4 
 

PROJECT LOCATIONS 
APPENDIX B 

 
 

Parcel Number Street Address 

K -11-24-105-001 3293 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-002 3289 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-003 3285 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-004 3281 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-005 3277 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-006 3273 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-007 3269 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-008 3265 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-009 3261 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-010 3257 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-011 3253 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-012 3249 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-013 3245 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-014 3241 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-015 3237 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-016 3233 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-017 3229 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-018 3225 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-105-019 3221 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-001 3187 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-002 3183 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-003 3179 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-004 3175 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-005 3171 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-006 3167 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-007 3163 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-008 3159 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-009 3155 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-010 3151 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-011 3139 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-012 3135 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-013 3131 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-014 3127 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-015 3123 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-016 3119 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-017 3115 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-106-018 3109 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 



Page 2 of 4 
 

Parcel Number Street Address 

K -11-24-107-001 3194 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-107-002 3190 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-107-003 3186 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-107-004 3182 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-107-005 3178 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-107-006 3174 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-107-007 3170 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-107-008 3166 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-107-009 3162 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-107-010 3158 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-107-011 3154 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-107-012 3150 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-107-013 3146 MORRIS AVE YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-001 2106 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-002 2108 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-003 2110 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-004 2112 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-005 2114 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-006 2116 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-007 2118 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-008 2120 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-009 2126 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-010 2128 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-011 2130 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-012 2132 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-013 2134 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-014 2136 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-015 2138 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-016 2140 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-017 2142 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-018 2144 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-019 2150 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-020 2152 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-021 2154 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-022 2156 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-023 2158 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-024 2160 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-025 2162 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-108-026 2164 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-001 2115 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 



Page 3 of 4 
 

Parcel Number Street Address 

K -11-24-109-002 2117 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-003 2119 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-004 2121 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-005 2123 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-006 2125 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-007 2127 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-008 2129 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-009 2131 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-010 2137 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-011 2139 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-012 2141 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-013 2143 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-014 2145 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-015 2147 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-016 2149 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-017 2151 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-109-018 2153 MARGERY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-001 2116 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-002 2118 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-003 2120 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-004 2122 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-005 2124 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-006 2126 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-007 2128 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-008 2130 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-009 2132 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-010 2138 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-011 2140 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-012 2142 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-013 2144 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-014 2146 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-015 2148 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-016 2150 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-017 2152 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-110-018 2154 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-001 2107 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-002 2109 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-003 2111 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-004 2115 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-005 2117 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 



Page 4 of 4 
 

Parcel Number Street Address 

K -11-24-111-006 2119 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-007 2121 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-008 2123 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-009 2129 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-010 2131 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-011 2133 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-012 2135 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-013 2137 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-014 2139 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-015 2141 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-016 2143 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-017 2145 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-018 2147 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-019 2153 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-020 2155 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-021 2157 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-022 2159 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-023 2161 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-024 2163 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-025 2165 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-111-026 2167 NANCY ST YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-181-001 3207 GROVE RD YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-181-002 3203 GROVE RD YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-181-003 3199 GROVE RD YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-181-004 3195 GROVE RD YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-181-005 3191 GROVE RD YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-181-006 3187 GROVE RD YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-181-007 3183 GROVE RD YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-181-008 3179 GROVE RD YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-181-009 3175 GROVE RD YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-181-010 3171 GROVE RD YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-181-011 3167 GROVE RD YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-181-012 3163 GROVE RD YPSILANTI MI 48198 

K -11-24-181-013 3159 GROVE RD YPSILANTI MI 48198 
 



PROJECT 
PAYMENT REQUEST FORM 

APPENDIX C 
 
 

FORM ATTACHED 



PAYMENT REQUEST 
 
 
(To be submitted on organization's letterhead) 
 
 
 
Date 
 
 
Barry Ellentuck, ADR Consultants, LLC 
6364 Ramwyck Court, Suite C 
West Bloomfield, MI 48322 
 
 
RE:  Name of Organization 
 Address of Organization 
 Contact Number 
 
 
Dear (Program Manager's Name): 
 
In review of the work performed by (contractor named below) and the attached invoice, I request 
that ($______________________) be released to _________________________, 
for this payment request. I also certify, that within (3) business days of receiving these funds that 
payments will be made to the requested party. 
 
 
Payment Request No. (Overall) ________________________________________ 
Name of Contractor/Architect:  ________________________________________ 
Address of Subcontractor  ________________________________________ 
Service(s) Provided   ________________________________________ 
Amount $    ________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 



 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:       Jeff Allen, Residential Services Director 
 
DATE:  May 6, 2013 
 
RE:      Approval for hiring Lutz Roofing for 14B Court roof replacement 
 
 
As you may recall, on March 11, 2013, you authorized that I seek sealed bids for  
a roof replacement over the 14B Court.  
 
We advertised this bid on April 11, 2013, including a mandatory pre-bid meeting  
on April 22, 2013. We also (e)mailed out invitations to bid to 11 local companies  
so that they would be aware of the work, even if they didn’t see the  
advertisement.  I will have the list of those companies with me at the Board  
meeting if you are interested in seeing it.  
 
We had 5 companies present for the pre-bid meeting, and on April 30th we held  
the bid opening with 4 companies submitting bids.  
 
The bids as open were as follows: 
 
Lutz Roofing Co., Inc.   $269,420 
Molnar Roofing Co., Inc.    $314,200 
Royal West Roofing    $309,800 
Schena Roofing & Sheet Metal  $330,000 
 
 
On May 3, 2013, I conducted a post bid interview with the apparent low bidder,  
Lutz Roofing, and introduced him to Magistrate Nelson and all seemed well with  
the bid they submitted.  We all recognized that there will be some inconvenience  
with noise and all in the Courthouse while this is taking place.  We will attempt to  
work with the schedule that the Magistrate presents us, but he thinks it will be  
well worth it to rid themselves of the rainy day leaks they get.  

Residential Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484-0073 
Fax:  (734) 544-3501 

www.ytown.org 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
JEAN HALL CURRIE 

STAN ELDRIDGE 
MIKE MARTIN 

SCOTT MARTIN 



 
Lutz Roofing submitted a 5% bid bond and has listed the Township officials as  
additionally insured as required.  They will also post the necessary performance  
bond and surety bonds as required in a job this size.  
 
Lutz is located in Shelby Township and is a union shop.  They will be following  
prevailing and living wage ordinances.  As of now, they have open dates in June  
that we are hoping to schedule in.  
 
I am proposing we pay for this work out of the capital outlay account for the 
14-B Court, account  # 101.970.000.971.003.  
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Charter Township Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:       Jeff Allen, RSD Director & Michael Saranen, Hydro Operations 
 
DATE:   April 26, 2013 
 
RE:  Recommend the hiring of Cardno/JFNew for N. Hydro erosion  
 
At your November 26, 2012 Board Meeting, you approved the Township to go  
out and seek proposals to address the soil erosion issue that is occurring on the  
west bank of the Huron River, impacting the east end of N. Hydro Park. 
 
We conducted a well-attended RFP meeting on January 15, 2013 to go over  
what we are experiencing in the park as well as notify everyone that we were  
looking for a design solution for this shoreline, including a proposal on  
constructing the solution.  These proposals were due back on February 27,  
2013, giving them a full 5 weeks to examine all their options for a solution.  
We received a total of 4 proposals from a combination of engineering and  
construction companies.  
 
Beginning in March, we started to vet out the proposals and shared the designs  
with other professionals in the field, including the Huron River Watershed Council. 
 
We then called back the two best proposals and interviewed them on April 4,  
2013 and requested a couple pieces of more information from them in order to complete  
the process. We now have the final information necessary to go forward as we  
have also checked their references for similar projects. 
 
It is with pleasure that we are recommending Cardno/JFNew to do this erosion  
work in the park.  As it turns out their proposal seemed the best and was the  
least expensive. The amount of $76,988 is a complete repair, including design  
and construction.  If we wanted them to seek and apply for a grant, it is an  
additional $3,165.  However, Cardno/JFNew was not aware of any at this time  
and they would have to research where one may be and that could take time and  
delay the project another year, so at this point, I am not recommending the extra money.  
 
I propose we use account 212.970.000.975.795 in the amount of $76,988.  

Residential Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI  48197 

Phone:  (734) 484-0073 
Fax:  (734) 544-3501 

www.ytown.org 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
JEAN HALL CURRIE 

STAN ELDRIDGE 
MIKE MARTIN 

SCOTT MARTIN 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 
To:  Board of Trustees 
 

From:  Mike Radzik 
  Office of Community Standards 
 

Re: Request to Accept Bid from Dore & Associates Contracting, Inc. for the 
Demolition of Liberty Square and to Award a Contract in the amount of $653,840 

 

Date:  May 7, 2013 
 

Copy To: Javonna Neel, Accounting Director 
  Doug Winters, Attorney 
 
 
On June 28, 2012, the Office of Community Standards published a Request for Proposals for the 

demolition of Liberty Square to comply with a circuit court order that declared the complex to 

be a public nuisance.  Four valid bid proposals were received in response to the RFP.  The 

recommendations to accept a bid and award a contract has been held pending final award of 

grant funding through the Michigan Blight Elimination Program, which has now occurred. 

Building Director Ron Fulton has conducted a thorough review of the bid proposals and has 

recommended acceptance of the lowest most qualified bid from Dore & Associates, Inc. in the 

amount of $653,840.  The following other competitive bids were also received and evaluated: 

  Erie Investments, LLC   $707,437 

ABC Demolition Company, Inc. $799,865 

  Citadel Excavating   $953,414 

 

Dore & Associates, Inc. has cooperated with the Township in extending the expiration date of 

its bid to accommodate the final award of grant funding.  It is anticipated that the demolition 

project will commence on or after June 1, 2013 after execution of contract documents and 

required notification to the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality. 

I respectfully request that the Board of Trustees accept the lowest most qualified bid from Dore 

& Associates, Inc. and authorize the signing of a contract in accordance with attorney review 

and recommendation.  This is a pass through cost funded by a grant from the Michigan Blight 

Elimination Program and budgeted in account 101-950.000-969.013. 

Thank you for your thoughtful consideration.  Please contact me with questions or concerns. 



  
AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI AND 

DORE & ASSOCIATES CONTRACTING INC.  

FOR DEMOLITION OF 151 TOWNHOMES WHICH ARE 

HOUSED WITHIN 17 SEPARATE BUILDINGS LOCATED  

IN THE HOUSING COMPLEX COMMONLY REFERRED  

TO AS THE LIBERTY SQUARE TOWNHOMES  

WHICH WAS MANAGED AND OPERATED BY THE  

“GROVE PARK HOME IMPROVEMENT ASSOCIATION” 

IN YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP, WASHTENAW COUNTY, 

PURSUANT TO THE ORDER ENTERED BY  

WASHTENAW COUNTY CIRCUIT COURT JUDGE  

DONALD E. SHELTON ON AUGUST 19, 2011 

WHICH WAS UPHELD BY THE STATE OF MICHIGAN  

COURT OF APPEALS IN AN UNPUBLISHED OPINION 

DATED MARCH 26, 2013 

 



 
 2 

WHEREAS the Charter Township of Ypsilanti is a Municipal Corporation 

whose address is 7200 South Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti, MI 48197 (hereinafter 

referred to as “Township”); and 

WHEREAS on August 19, 2011 Washtenaw County Circuit Court  

Judge Donald E. Shelton entered the “Opinion and Order” which inter alia 

declared “. . . the 17 structures housing 151 townhome units at the  

Grove Park Homes/Liberty Square complex to be a public nuisance.”  The 

August 19, 2011 Order entered by Judge Shelton further “ . . . Ordered and 

Adjudged that the public nuisance shall be abated by demolition of all 

existing structures at Grove Park Homes/Liberty Square,” and 

 WHEREAS the August 19, 2011 Order entered by Judge Shelton also 

ordered Ypsilanti Township to “. . . demolish the 17 buildings and secure the 

property. The expense of the demolition may be assessed by the Township 

against the Grove Park Home Improvement Association and shall become a 

lien on the underlying property.”  A copy of the August 19, 2011 Opinion and 

Order being incorporated by reference and labeled Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS the Defendant in the Circuit Court lawsuit referenced by  

Judge Shelton in his Opinion dated August 19, 2011 to-wit:  Grove Park Home  

Improvement Association filed an appeal of right with the State of Michigan 

Court of Appeals; and 

 WHEREAS on March 26, 2013 a three (3) Judge Panel of the Court of 



 
 3 

Appeals issued an Opinion wherein the Appeals Court unanimously upheld the 

August 19, 2011 Opinion and Order entered by Judge Shelton, a copy of the 

March 26, 2013 Opinion being incorporated by reference and labeled Exhibit B; 

and 

 WHEREAS the Court of Appeals in its March 26, 2013 Opinion stated 

inter alia that the “ . . . evidence supported the trial court’s finding that ‘the 

dilapidated and crumbling conditions at Liberty Square pose a continuing, 

impending danger to the general public and to the legitimate property or 

personal rights of persons living or even entering upon the complex’” , and 

 WHEREAS the Court of Appeals also stated in its March 26, 2013 Opinion 

that the “Appellants present no argument that the trial court abused its 

discretion by imposing the equitable remedy of abatement by demolition . . 

and because Appellants present no argument that demolition is 

inappropriate in this case, we affirm the trial court’s Order,” and 

 WHEREAS on June 28, 2012 the Township published in its newspaper of 

record, to-wit:  The Ypsilanti Courier an “Invitation to Bid,” seeking sealed bids  

“ . . . for the Demolition of Liberty Square until July 12, 2012 @ 10:00 a.m. 

Eastern time, at which time all bids will be publicly read aloud in the first 

floor conference room at the Ypsilanti Township Civic Center . . .” in 

accordance with the requirements set forth in the “Demolition Project 

Specifications” a copy of said “Invitation to Bid”  and “Demolition Project 



 
 4 

Specifications” being attached hereto and incorporated by reference and 

labeled Exhibit C and Exhibit D respectively, and  

 WHEREAS on July 12, 2012 the Township opened and publicly read aloud 

all of the sealed bids that had been received in accordance with the procedures 

set forth in the “Invitation to Bid” (Exhibit C), and the “Demolition Project 

Specifications” (Exhibit D), and 

WHEREAS, Dore & Associates Contracting Inc.  (hereinafter referred to 

as Dore & Associates), is a Michigan domestic profit corporation, whose 

address is 900 Harry S. Truman Parkway, Bay City, Michigan 48706 was the 

lowest qualified bidder who submitted a sealed bid dated July 12, 2012 for the 

demolition of the Liberty Square Townhomes which consists of 151 vacant and 

separate townhomes which are housed within 17 separate buildings for a  

Total Project Bid (including a 10% contingency) in an amount not to exceed 

$653,840.00 (a copy of said bid being attached hereto and incorporated by 

reference, labeled Exhibit E) which bid was extended by Dore & Associates  for 

an additional six (6) months as set forth in a letter dated October 15, 2012 from 

Dore Associate’s President Arthur M. Dore, a copy of said letter being attached 

hereto and incorporated by reference and labeled Exhibit F. 

 

Now, Therefore, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants of 

the parties described in this Agreement, It Is Hereby Agreed as Follows: 



 
 5 

1.  Dore & Associates shall provide the necessary labor and 

equipment needed to perform the demolition of the housing structures located at 

the Liberty Square Townhomes complex which consists of 151 vacant and 

separate townhomes which are housed within 17 separate buildings pursuant to 

Exhibits D, E & F attached hereto and consistent with the recitals set forth above 

in exchange for payment by the Township in an amount not to exceed 

$653,840.00.  

2.  Dore & Associates and any subcontractor hired to perform the 

demolition of Liberty Square Townhomes complex which consists of 151 vacant 

and separate townhomes which are housed within 17 separate buildings shall 

purchase insurance naming the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, and its past, 

present, and future elected officials, trustees, appointed commissions and 

boards, agents and employees as “additional insureds” on a general liability 

policy with respect to the services provided under this Agreement. This 

insurance shall remain in continuous effect from the date of this Agreement 

through the inspection, approval and acceptance by the Township of the 

demolition of Liberty Square Townhomes complex. (pursuant to the attached 

Exhibits D, E & F). A copy of all required Certificates of Insurance as required  

 

 

by the Specifications (Exhibit D) being attached hereto and incorporated by 



 
 6 

reference and labeled Exhibit G.  

 3. Dore & Associates and any subcontractor hired to perform the 

demolition of Liberty Square Townhomes complex which consists of 151 vacant 

and separate townhomes which are housed within 17 separate buildings shall 

perform said demolition in accordance with all of the terms and conditions of the 

“GRANT CONTRACT FOR DEMOLITION BETWEEN THE MICHIGAN LAND 

BANK FAST TRACK AUTHORITY AND CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 

YPSILANTI”  (Grant Contract) including but not limited too the “Project Scope 

and Requirements Appendix A” attached to the Grant Contract.   

 Dore & Associates recognizes and agrees that the proposed Demolition 

Contract between itself and the Charter Township of Ypsilanti for the demolition 

of the Liberty Square Townhomes complex is contingent upon the Township 

receiving from the Michigan Land Bank Fast Track Authority the grant amount of 

$653,840.00.  Once the Township has entered into the Grant Contract with the 

Michigan Land Bank Fast Track Authority, it will then proceed with the execution 

of this Demolition Contract.  A copy of the Grant Contract and Project Scope 

and Requirements Appendix A are attached hereto and incorporated by 

reference and labeled Exhibit J.    

 

 

 4. Once the Township has received the necessary and required 



 
 7 

authorization from all State agencies that have jurisdiction and oversight  

of this Grant Contract and Project Scope and Requirements Appendix A 

(Exhibit J) including the “Notice to Proceed,” the Township shall then issue a 

separate “Notice to Proceed” to Dore & Associates to commence with the 

demolition of the “Liberty Square Townhomes.”  Upon receipt from the 

Township of the “Notice to Proceed,” Dore & Associates shall commence 

forthwith the mobilization of all necessary machinery and equipment, etc. so as to 

ensure the demolition of the “Liberty Square Townhomes” is completed within 

the timelines as set forth in the Grant Contract.  

5.  Dore & Associates  shall purchase the following bonds as set forth 

in the Specifications (labeled Exhibit D), all of which shall inure to the benefit of 

the Township, so as to insure Dore & Associates will deliver all materials, 

equipment and the necessary labor to perform the demolition of Liberty Square 

Townhomes complex which consists of 151 vacant and separate townhomes 

which are housed within 17 separate buildings pursuant to the Specifications in 

a workmanlike and professional manner, to wit:  

 A. Performance Bond  

 B. Michigan Public Labor and Material/Payment Bond 

copies of which are attached hereto and incorporated by reference and labeled 

Exhibit H & I. 

6. The demolition of Liberty Square Townhomes complex which 



 
 8 

consists of 151 vacant and separate townhomes which are housed within 17 

separate buildings and the removal of all debris as set forth in the Specifications 

(Exhibit D) shall be subject to the inspection and approval by a designated 

representative of the Township prior to payment as set forth above. 

7. Upon the inspection and approval by a designated representative of 

the Township, Dore & Associates shall then invoice the Township for final  

payment in accordance with their proposal dated July 12, 2012 in an amount not 

to exceed $653,840.00.   

_____________________________ _______________________________ 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor   by: Arthur M. Dore 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti  Its: President  

Dore & Associates Contracting Inc.   
Dated: ___________________  Dated: _________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk  
Charter Township of Ypsilanti  
Dated: _____________________ 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO:  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 

 
CC:  Jeff Allen, Residential Services Director 
  Doug Winters, Township Attorney 

 
FROM: Art Serafinski, CPRP, Recreation Director 
 
DATE:  May 2, 2013  

 
RE: Request for approval to award the Lakeside Park Improvement Project 

(MNRTF 10-05) to the low bidder, Cedroni Associates, Inc. pending 
MDNR approval. 

 
 
 

Included with this communication please find the letter of recommendation from our 
consultant, Beckett & Raeder, Inc. and supporting documents for Cedroni Associates, 
Inc.  A total of four bids were received and Cedroni Associates, Inc. meets all of the 
terms and conditions set forth in the bid documents.  They were also the low bidder. 
 
As part of the grant process, we will need to forward our recommendation to the 
Michigan Department of Natural Resources for their approval.  Therefore, we 
respectfully ask that Cedroni Associates, Inc. be awarded the project pending MDNR 
approval & attorney review.   
 
We ask that this item be placed on the May 13, 2013 Board meeting agenda for 
consideration.  I will be in attendance at the Board meeting to answer any questions 
you may have. 

 
  

 

Recreation Department 
Community Center 

 
2025 E. Clark Road 
Ypsilanti, MI  48198 

Phone:  (734) 544-3800 
Fax:  (734) 544-3888 

50 & Beyond: (734) 544-3838 
 

www.ytown.org 
 

Supervisor 

BRENDA L. STUMBO 
Clerk 

KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 
Treasurer 

LARRY J. DOE 
Trustees 

JEAN HALL CURRIE 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

MIKE MARTIN 
SCOTT MARTIN 

 

http://www.ytown.org/


 

 

initiative 

Beckett & Raeder, Inc. 
535 West William, Suite 101 
Ann Arbor, MI  48103 
 
734 663.2622 ph 
734 663.6759 fx 
 
www.bria2.com 

Traverse City Office 
921 West 11th St., Suite 2E 
Traverse City, MI  49684 
 
231.933.8400 ph 
231.944.1709  fx 
 
 

Petoskey Office 
616 Petoskey St., Suite 100 
Petoskey, MI  49770 
 
231.347.2523 ph 
231.347.2524 fx 

Toledo, Ohio 
419.242.3428 ph 
  
 
 

 
May 1, 2013 
 
Mr. Arthur Serafinski 
Director 
Ypsilanti Township Recreation 
2025 E. Clark road 
Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
 
Regarding:  Ypsilanti Charter Township Lakeside Park Improvements 
  MNRTF10-055 
 
Dear Mr. Serafinski, 
 
As you know, bids for the Lakeside Park Improvements were publicly opened and read 
aloud for the above-referenced project on Thursday, April 26, 2013.  Following is a 
summary of the bids received. 
 
Anglin Civil, LLC $651,648.00 
Pavex Corporation $616,161.61 
Davenport Brothers Construction $641,860.00 
Cedroni Associates, Inc. $562,000.00 
 
The Park Improvements bids were received at the Ypsilanti Charter Township Hall.  The low 
bid of $562,000.00 received from Cedroni Associates, Inc. is approximately $95,429 
(14.52%) under our engineer’s estimate of $657,428.75 and approximately $54,162 
(8.79%) under the next low bid.  Following opening, bids were reviewed by the Township 
and Beckett & Raeder.  A post-bid interview with Cedroni Associates was held on May 2, 
2013 and confirmed the firm’s significantly low bid properly reflected the scope of work 
described in the project bid documents.  The Township Recreation Department and Beckett 
& Raeder do have concerns related to Cedroni Associates’ past performance on similar 
projects.  While Cedroni’s finished work product is very good, submitted references 
(including Beckett & Raeder) indicate scheduling and timely completion have been recurring 
issues.  In response, Cedroni has submitted the attached notarized statement indicating 
that the firm will supply sufficient labor, subcontractors and materials for full completion on 
or before the contractual completion date (August 30, 2013).  During the post-bid 
interview, Cedroni also confirmed its awareness that the contract documents state Cedroni 
will be responsible for any and all costs incurred by the Township resulting from delays or 
improperly timed activities.   
 
Despite concerns, we have not found reason to disqualify Cedroni’s bid proposal and 
therefore recommend the Township Board move to award Cedroni Associates, Inc. of Utica, 



 
                        
 

MI the Lakeside Park Improvement project in the amount of $562,000.00 conditioned upon 
the Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund’s (MNRTF) authorization to award.  Actual 
execution of the contract between the Township and Cedroni shall occur upon fulfillment 
of project document and MNRTF pre-award conditions such as supply of bonds and 
insurance certificates. 
 
Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions or require additional 
information. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

initiative  
 
 
Brian D. Barrick, LLA 
Senior Landscape Architect 
 
 
attachments: Bid Opening Tabulation 
  Certified Bid Tabulation 
  Cedroni Bid Proposal 
  Cedroni Bid Bond 
  Cedroni Notarized Statement of Timely Completion 
  Cedroni Notarized Statement of Legal Disputes 
  Cedroni Notarized Statement of Bankruptcy or Reorganization 
  Cedroni Reference List 
  Cedroni In-progress Project List 
  Cedroni Pending Project List 
 





Project: Lakeside Park Improvements
Ypsilanti Charter Township

Bid Due Date: April 25, 2013, 2:00 pm

A
n

g
lin

 C
iv

il 
LL

C

Pa
ve

x 
C

o
rp

o
ra

ti
o

n

D
av

en
p

o
rt

 
B

ro
th

er
s 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

C
ed

ro
n

i A
ss

o
c

En
g

in
ee

r'
s 

Es
ti

m
at

e

A
ve

ra
g

e

M
ed

ia
n

Bid Total $651,648 $616,162 $641,860 $562,000 $657,429 $617,917.40 $629,010.81

INFORMATIONAL UNIT PRICES
DEMOLITION
Clearing and Grubbing Trees ac $5,000.00 $8,000.00 $6,000.00 $3,800.00 $5,700.00 $5,500.00
Tree Removal (1-6" cal.) ea $250.00 $70.00 $50.00 $135.00 $126.25 $102.50
Tree Removal (7-12"cal.) ea $350.00 $180.00 $95.00 $165.00 $197.50 $172.50

$ $ $ $ $ $

Bidder (Company Name)

Tree Removal (13-18"cal.) ea $450.00 $220.00 $195.00 $380.00 $311.25 $300.00
Tree Removal (19-24"cal.) ea $550.00 $270.00 $375.00 $650.00 $461.25 $462.50
Tree Removal (over 24" cal.) ea $650.00 $360.00 $700.00 $1,650.00 $840.00 $675.00
Pavement Sawcutting (full depth) lf $6.00 $2.00 $5.00 $2.70 $3.93 $3.85
Concrete Pavement Removal sf $1.50 $1.00 $3.00 $1.62 $1.78 $1.56
Bituminous Pavement Removal sf $1.50 $0.50 $2.50 $1.35 $1.46 $1.43

SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL
Stabilized Construction Access ls $3,800.00 $1,500.00 $3,500.00 $1,950.00 $2,687.50 $2,725.00
Turbidity Curtain lf $17.00 $25.00 $40.00 $27.00 $27.25 $26.00
Tree Protection Fence lf $3.00 $4.00 $2.00 $6.00 $3.75 $3.50
Filter Fabric Fence lf $3.00 $1.00 $1.50 $1.35 $1.71 $1.43
Permanent Erosion Control Mat sf $3.00 $2.00 $1.10 $2.03 $2.00

EARTHWORK
Strip and Stockpile Topsoil cy $5.00 $4.00 $4.50 $3.00 $4.13 $4.25
Cut & Fill on-site cy $3.00 $6.00 $4.50 $4.60 $4.53 $4.55
Class II Sand cy $18.00 $20.00 $31.50 $16.20 $21.43 $19.00
Undercut and Backfill with Class II Sand cy $25.00 $30.00 $37.88 $27.00 $29.97 $28.50
Aggregate Base (MDOT 21AA) cy $25.00 $35.00 $39.00 $25.10 $31.03 $30.05
Screen, Respread Topsoil cy $8.00 $15.00 $4.50 $13.50 $10.25 $10.75
Fine Grade to Subgrade Elevation sy $0.25 $1.00 $18.00 $0.92 $5.04 $0.96
Haul Material offsite and legally dispose cy $28.00 $20.00 $12.50 $7.56 $17.02 $16.25
Boulder Wall ff $24.00 $30.00 $32.50 $28.83 $30.00

PAVING
Concrete Roll Curb - MDOT B2 30" lf $25 00 $20 00 $30 00 $27 00 $25 50 $26 00Concrete Roll Curb - MDOT B2 30 lf $25.00 $20.00 $30.00 $27.00 $25.50 $26.00
Vehicular Gravel Parking Drive 9" sy $22.00 $8.00 $13.00 $14.33 $13.00
Concrete Pavement 8" sf $8.00 $5.00 $5.00 $8.64 $6.66 $6.50
Bituminous Pavement sf $4.00 $1.50 $4.25 $2.70 $3.11 $3.35
Stabilized Gravel Trail 8' Width lf $40.00 $19.00 $20.00 $13.00 $23.00 $19.50
Stabilized Gravel Trail 6' Width lf $40.00 $15.00 $17.00 $10.80 $20.70 $16.00
Stabilized Gravel Path 8' Width lf $33.00 $13.00 $12.00 $19.33 $13.00

SITE FURNISHINGS
Picnic Shelter ls $51,000.00 $42,000.00 $62,000.00 $40,000.00 $48,750.00 $46,500.00
West Overlook ls $11,000.00 $11,800.00 $14,500.00 $11,000.00 $12,075.00 $11,400.00
East Overlook ls $12,000.00 $17,000.00 $14,500.00 $15,000.00 $14,625.00 $14,750.00
Overlook Pier Cable Railing lf $110.00 $18,000.00 $175.00 $6,095.00 $175.00
Floating Dock Concrete Headwall ls $6,500.00 $22,000.00 $7,000.00 $21,000.00 $14,125.00 $14,000.00
Floating Dock  ls $44,000.00 $67,000.00 $35,000.00 $60,000.00 $51,500.00 $52,000.00
Fishing Dock Cable Railing lf $110.00 $18,000.00 $175.00 $6,095.00 $175.00
Floating Dock Gangway Cable Railing lf $110.00 $8,000.00 $175.00 $2,761.67 $175.00
Floating Dock ADA Transfer Steps ls $3,900.00 $8,000.00 $550.00 $4,150.00 $3,900.00
Regulatory Sign ea $500.00 $380.00 $440.00 $440.00
Interpretive Sign ea $3,700.00 $1,000.00 $480.00 $1,726.67 $1,000.00
ADA Transition Plate ea $2,100.00 $3,500.00 $500.00 $2,033.33 $2,100.00
Bench - In-ground Mount ea $4,500.00 $1,300.00 $2,900.00 $2,900.00
Bench - Surface Mount ea $4,100.00 $1,300.00 $2,700.00 $2,700.00
Trash Receptacle - In-ground Mount ea $2,000.00 $1,600.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00
Grill - In-ground Mount ea $1,800.00 $500.00 $1,150.00 $1,150.00
Bike Hoop ea $750.00 $100.00 $425.00 $425.00

STORM UTILITY
4' Diameter Manhole ea $5,100.00 $2,000.00 $1,800.00 $1,900.00 $2,700.00 $1,950.00
12" RCP CL IV End Section ea $862.00 $500.00 $800.00 $600.00 $690.50 $700.00
12" RCP CL IV Storm Pipe lf $62.00 $50.00 $45.00 $50.00 $51.75 $50.00
Storm Water Outlet Control Structure ea $1,200.00 $2,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,970.00 $2,167.50 $2,250.00
6" SDR35 Sanitary Pipe lf $40.00 $50.00 $70.00 $60.00 $55.00 $55.00
Sanitary Cleanout ea $287.00 $400.00 $500.00 $380.00 $391.75 $390.00
2" Copper Water Service Lead lf $28.75 $30.00 $40.00 $24.00 $30.69 $29.38
Bore with Steel Casing for 2" Water Service Lead lf $200.00 $150.00 $80.00 $43.00 $118.25 $115.00
6" DIP CL 350 Water lf $45.00 $70.00 $65.00 $42.00 $55.50 $55.00
Fire Hydrant ea $5,100.00 $3,000.00 $2,500.00 $3,000.00 $3,400.00 $3,000.00
Bore with Steel Casing for 6" Hydrant Lead lf $350.00 $125.00 $300.00 $258.33 $300.00

LANDSCAPE AND SEEDING
Fescue Seeding sy $1.25 $1.20 $1.00 $1.10 $1.14 $1.15
Native Wet Swale Seeding sy $1.25 $1.20 $1.00 $2.70 $1.54 $1.23
Native Woodland Seeding sy $1.50 $1.20 $1.00 $2.70 $1.60 $1.35
Erosion Control Coconut Mulch Blanket w/Biodegradable Stakes sy $2.50 $2.50 $0.50 $1.65 $1.79 $2.08
Acer rubrum, 3" B&B ea $500.00 $350.00 $305.00 $250.00 $351.25 $327.50
Quercus alba, 3" B&B ea $500.00 $450.00 $310.00 $275.00 $383.75 $380.00
Quercus rubra, 3" B&B ea $500.00 $450.00 $310.00 $275.00 $383.75 $380.00





























 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO:  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 

 

CC:  Jeff Allen, Residential Services Director 
  Doug Winters, Township Attorney 

 

FROM: Art Serafinski, CPRP, Recreation Director 
 

DATE:  May 6, 2013  
 

RE: Request for approval to award the Geotechnical Materials Testing 
Services to the low bidder, Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI) for 
the Lakeside Park improvement project (MNRTF10-055) 

 
A total of three proposals were received for geotechnical materials testing services for 
the Lakeside Park improvement project (MNRTF10-055).  These proposals were 
reviewed by our consultant, Beckett & Raeder, Inc. and it is their recommendation that 
the low bidder, Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI) be awarded the work.  Their 
proposal meets all of the terms and conditions required for the job.   
 
Included with this request is the letter of recommendation from our consultant and 
support documentation.  It is recommended that the Township Board move to award 
Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI) of Plymouth, MI the Lakeside Park 
Improvement project Geotechnical Materials Testing Services in the amount of 
$7,080.00.  It is further recommended that the Township Board approve the award to 
PSI conditioned upon Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund’s (MNRTF) authorization 
to award the Cedroni Associates construction contract. Because the two contracts are 
mutually dependent, actual execution of the PSI contract shall occur upon MNRTF 
approval. 
 
We ask that this item be placed on the May 13, 2013 Board meeting agenda for 
consideration.  I will be in attendance at the Board meeting to answer any questions 
you may have.  

 

Recreation Department 
Community Center 

 
2025 E. Clark Road 
Ypsilanti, MI  48198 

Phone:  (734) 544-3800 
Fax:  (734) 544-3888 

50 & Beyond: (734) 544-3838 
 

www.ytown.org 
 

Supervisor 

BRENDA L. STUMBO 
Clerk 

KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 
Treasurer 

LARRY J. DOE 
Trustees 

JEAN HALL CURRIE 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

MIKE MARTIN 
SCOTT MARTIN 

 

http://www.ytown.org/


 

 

initiative 

Beckett & Raeder, Inc. 
535 West William, Suite 101 
Ann Arbor, MI  48103 
 
734 663.2622 ph 
734 663.6759 fx 
 
www.bria2.com 

Traverse City Office 
921 West 11th St., Suite 2E 
Traverse City, MI  49684 
 
231.933.8400 ph 
231.944.1709  fx 
 
 

Petoskey Office 
616 Petoskey St., Suite 100 
Petoskey, MI  49770 
 
231.347.2523 ph 
231.347.2524 fx 

Toledo, Ohio 
419.242.3428 ph 
  
 
 

 
May 3, 2013 
 
Mr. Arthur Serafinski 
Director 
Ypsilanti Township Recreation 
2025 E. Clark road 
Ypsilanti, MI 48198 
 
Regarding:  Ypsilanti Charter Township Lakeside Park Improvements 
  Geotechnical Materials Testing Services 

MNRTF10-055 
 
 
Dear Mr. Serafinski, 
 
On behalf of Ypsilanti Charter Township, Beckett & Raeder (BRI) issued a Request for 
Proposals for Lakeside Park Improvements Geotechnical Materials Testing Services.  Three 
southeast Michigan firms familiar to BRI and Township staff were invited to submit 
proposals.  Proposals were received at the BRI office on Friday, May 3, 2013.  Following is a 
summary of the three proposals received. 
 
 
Soils and Materials Engineers, Inc. (SME) $13,000.00 
Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. (TEC) $9,160.00 
Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI) $7,080.00 
 
 
Following receipt of proposals, BRI reviewed results and conducted a telephone interview 
with (PSI).  The telephone discussion confirmed that PSI’s proposal properly reflects the 
scope of work described in the RFP.  BRI has successfully worked with PSI on numerous 
projects and has always been satisfied with thoroughness of work, efficiency, and 
timeliness.  As a result, BRI recommends the Township Board move to award Professional 
Service Industries, Inc. of Plymouth, MI the Lakeside Park Improvement project Geotechnical 
Materials Testing Services in the amount of $7,080.00.  BRI further suggests that the 
Township Board approve award to PSI conditioned upon Michigan Natural Resources Trust 
Fund’s (MNRTF) authorization to award the Cedroni Associates construction contract.  
Because the two contracts are mutually dependent, actual execution of the PSI contract 
shall occur upon MNRTF approval. 
 



 
                        
 

Please feel free to contact me should you have any questions or require additional 
information. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Brian D. Barrick, LLA 
Senior Landscape Architect 
 

initiative  
attachments: Proposal Tabulation 
  PSI Proposal (revised to be addressed to Ypsilanti Township)   

PSI Proposal (as originally submitted) 
TEC Proposal  
SME Proposal 

   
   
 





 

 

  
Professional Service Industries, Inc. 45749 Helm Street, Plymouth, MI 48170. Phone: (734) 453-7900. Fax: (734) 453-0724 

 

         May 3, 2013 
Mr. Arthur Serafinski 
Director 
Ypsilanti Township Recreation 
2025 E. Clark Road 
Ypsilanti, MI 48198  
 
 
Subject: Construction Observation and Material Testing Services Proposal for 
  Lakeside Park Improvements Project  

Site Work/Renovations 
Ypsilanti Township, Michigan  
PSI Proposal Number – 0379-94955 
 
 

Dear Mr. Serafinski: 
 
Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI) is pleased to submit the following proposal for 
providing construction materials testing and inspection services for the referenced 
project. 
 
PSI is the largest independent engineering testing firm in the United States having 125 
offices located in 40 states with 2,500 employees.  As the nation’s largest materials 
testing firm, PSI’s solid credentials will bring the following benefits to your project: 
  
BENCH STRENGTH - PSI has the necessary equipment and manpower to provide full-
time field technicians during peak construction activity. 
 
COST EFFECTIVE - Our company management and operating procedures dictate cost-
effective utilization of our resources and we pass the savings on to our clients. 
 
The PSI Plymouth, Michigan office is currently accredited by the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers for Soils and Aggregate and holds accreditations from the American 
Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) Materials 
Reference laboratory (AMRL) in Hot Mix Asphalt, Aggregate, Soil and Portland Cement 
Concrete. In addition, PSI is currently working on several municipal projects throughout 
the State of Michigan and we are providing core services of soils, concrete and asphalt 
testing and inspection, as well as various environmental and geotechnical services. 
 
PSI has detailed the proposed specific surveillance and testing services as described in 
our Estimated Construction Services Budget.  The categories of services included in our 
Budget consist of: 
 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No.0379-94955 
Page 2 of 11 

 

 Classification of Soils 
 Engineered Grading and/or Filling 
 Foundations 
 Placement of Reinforcing Steel 
 Placement of Reinforced Concrete 
 Testing of Reinforced Concrete 

 
PSI proposes to provide the described services on a unit-price basis. Total fees will be 
determined by the actual amount of technical time expended for this project and the 
actual quantity of laboratory tests performed.  For preliminary budgeting purposes, PSI 
has prepared the following estimated budget for testing services based on information 
supplied by Beckett & Raeder, which included a review of the scope, project overview 
and project time allowance. PSI retained electronic copies of project documents. The 
work performed by PSI will depend on the actual construction schedule. All work will be 
performed at the direction of your representative on an On-Call basis.  Prior to starting 
work on the project it would be beneficial to meet to discuss a detailed schedule of your 
testing needs after which we can more accurately determine the total project testing 
budgets.   
 
PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 
Based on information provided within the project documents, the field activities will 
consist of general site grading, foundations, and concrete placement.   
 
PSI has detailed the proposed specific surveillance and testing services as described in 
our Estimated Construction Services Budget.  The categories of services included in our 
Budget consist of: 
 
 Subgrade Construction/ Earthwork Operations/ Foundations: This service is 

required for preparation of the sub-grade, installation of the sub-drainage system, 
underground utilities, and aggregate base.  Our field representative will observe and 
document undercut operations to remove unsuitable soils, if encountered, evaluate 
native and fill soils, and determine the moisture content and in-place dry density of 
engineered backfill materials.  In order to expedite the testing operations and to 
minimize delays to the contractor, our field representative will use a nuclear 
moisture-density gauge to verify compliance of fill materials with compaction 
specifications.  More specifically, we propose to do the following: 

 
1. Perform maximum density and optimum moisture content testing (Modified 

Proctor test, ASTM D-1557) for each fill material that is proposed for use 
at the site. 

 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No.0379-94955 
Page 3 of 11 

 

2. Perform grain-size analysis of materials per ASTM for each specified 
material to determine suitability of material for drainage, bedding and 
engineered backfill. 

 
3. Perform in-place density / moisture tests to establish degree of 

compaction of fill materials during the engineered fill placement. 
 

4. Verify soil bearing capacity utilizing a Housel Penetrometer, Pocket 
Penetrometer or Dynamic Cone Penetrometer (DCP).  Compare in place 
soil conditions with Geotechnical information. 

 
 Cast-In-Place-Concrete – This service is required for the construction of 

foundations, walkways, curbs, pads and concrete pavement.  Our field 
representative will observe the placement of reinforcing steel/mesh, observe 
concrete placement operations, perform appropriate field-testing and mold 
compression test cylinders.  We will also perform the necessary related and/or 
follow-up services including the following: 

 
1. Observe mix cycle, concrete age, and delivery tickets. 

 
2. Observe concrete placement, consolidation, finishing and curing 

procedures. 
 
3. Conduct the following field concrete tests: 

 
 Slump (ASTM C 143) at the rate determined by the project 

specifications.  Perform slump tests at the discharge end and at the 
truck, if concrete is pumped. 

 Temperature at the rate determined by the project specifications. 
 Air content (ASTM C 183 or C 231) at the rate determined by the 

project specifications.  
 Unit weight and yield (ASTM C 138) at the rate determined by the 

project specifications. 
 One set of four compressive strength test specimens, (cylinders 

ASTM- 
C 31), at the rate determined by the project specifications. 
 

4. Perform the following laboratory tests: 
 
 Compressive strength tests at the rate determined by the project 

specifications. One at seven days; two at 28 days; and one held for 
later breaks. 

 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No.0379-94955 
Page 4 of 11 

 

Please note that our services do not include supervision or direction of the actual work.  
Also, be aware that neither the presence of our field representative nor the observation 
and testing by our firm shall imply PSI's responsibility for defects discovered in the 
construction work.  It is understood that our firm will not be responsible for job or site 
safety on this project.  Job site safety will be the sole responsibility of others. 
 
Under the scope of work covered by this proposal, the words "inspection" and "verify" 
are used to mean observation of the work and the conducting of tests by PSI to 
determine substantial compliance with plans, specifications and design concepts.  The 
term “continuous” as stated herein, shall mean the Technician/Inspector is on the site 
and in the general work area during the activity requiring observation and inspection.  
 
ALL-INCLUSIVE PROPOSED FEES 
 
As requested, PSI has provided an all inclusive per daily rates for our technician’s to 
provide the requisite field testing services.  These rates are inclusive of FIELD AND 
LABORATORY COORDINATION ACTIVITIES, REPORT REVIEW, FIELD 
EQUIPMENT USAGE, VEHICLE COSTS, SECRETARIAL SERVICES AND PROJECT 
MANAGEMENT.  We have also included in this rate approximately 3 hours per week for 
report review, coordination and project management. A minimum 2 hour charge will be 
applied, unless work for the day is cancelled by the contractor without advance notice. 
Minimum “cancellation charges” will be limited to half day rates: 
 
 
ALL INCLUSIVE UNIT RATES:  
 

 For observing earthwork operations, foundations, and concrete placement, by an 
experienced engineering technician for up to 8 hours:  

 
 $50.00 per hour for regular hours 

 Half Day Rate of $200.00 per half day. 

 Daily Rate of $400.00 per day.  

 

The estimated total fees will, of course, depend on the construction schedule, progress 
of work and unforeseen problems encountered.   
 
We propose to perform the work on a unit rate basis in accordance with the attached 
Schedule of Services and Fees.  PSI’s fees will be determined on a time and materials 
expended and the number of field and laboratory tests performed for this project.  PSI’s 
estimate assumes all work will be completed Monday through Friday between the hours 
of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  This project will be serviced from our Plymouth office, 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No.0379-94955 
Page 5 of 11 

 

approximately 15 miles from the project site. Overtime or weekend / holiday rate will be 
charged at 1.5 times the unit rates listed above.  
 
The total fee for our services is dependent on many factors, including duration of the 
project, actual hours worked, weather conditions, and subsurface conditions 
encountered. The above factors will also affect the amount of time that the project 
manager will be involved in the project.  For typical projects, approximately 3 hours a 
week should be budgeted for project management’s involvement with each major task 
based on full time inspection.  
 
We understand that less than full-time services may be required at various times on this 
project.  Accordingly, we will only charge for the actual services provided. 
 
 
 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No.0379-94955 
Page 6 of 11 

 

Project Estimate Sheet
Construction Oberservation and Material Testing Services

Milestone Schedule:
Lakeside Park Improvements Project

Item Quantity Unit Rate Totals
Soils/ Earthwork/Foundations

Engineering Technician 9 Half Days at up to 4 Hours 200.00$    1,800.00$     

Engineering Technician 7 Full Days at up to 8 Hours 400.00$    2,800.00$     
4,600.00$    

Cast-in-Place Concrete

Engineering Technician 7 Half Days at up to 4 Hours 200.00$    1,400.00$     
1,400.00$    

Laboratory Tests

2 each 175.00$    350.00$        

2 each 65.00$      130.00$        

50 each 12.00$      600.00$        

1,080.00$     

7,080.00$     

TBD

Moisture/Density Relationship 
(ASTM D1557)

Concrete Compressive Strength 
(ASTM C39)

Arthur Serafinski, Director

Item Quoted:

Quoted to:

Soil Classification (ASTM D2488)

 
 
 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No.0379-94955 
Page 7 of 11 

 

 
 
Additional services requested but not quoted in this proposal will be performed in 
accordance with the attached "Schedule of Services and Fees". We also proposed that 
the work be performed pursuant to PSI’s General Conditions. A copy of the General 
Conditions is enclosed herewith and incorporated into this proposal. PSI will proceed 
with the work and will issue the daily materials testing and field observation reports after 
receipt of a signed copy of this proposal intact or a purchase order referencing this 
proposal by number and date.  When returning this proposal, please complete the 
attached Project Data Sheet so that your file can be properly established. 
 
 
Remarks:  See attached "Schedule of Service and Fees". 

  
A representative of PSI will be contacting you to confirm receipt of this proposal and to 
discuss any questions that you may have.  PSI appreciates the opportunity to offer its 
services and looks forward to working with you on this project 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
  
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE INDUSTRIES, INC. 
  

Dor’Mario Brown Mahmoud E. El-Gamal, Ph.D., P.E. 
Branch Manager Chief Engineer / District Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agreed to This __________________ Day of  _____________________________ , 2013 
 
Name:  _________________________________________________________________  
 
Title:  __________________________________________________________________  
 
Firm:  __________________________________________________________________  



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No.0379-94955 
Page 8 of 11 

 

 
Simplify Paperwork 

To help streamline paperwork, this proposal can be considered an annual agreement for 
services in 2013. When projects arise which need our services, simply issue us a Purchase 
Order or some other form of authorization, indicating the name of the project.  We will set up 
each project separately based on this agreement. This will eliminate the need to issue proposals 
and contracts for each new project while maintaining individual project tracking.   
 
Would you like this proposal to serve as a 2012 annual agreement?   yes  /   no 
 
Please sign one copy of this proposal and return to this office to serve as authorization to 
proceed. 
 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No. 
Page 9 of 11 
 

 

Remarks: 
 

 All rates are billed on a portal to portal basis 
 Unit prices/rates are in effect for 12 months from the date of this proposal and are subject to change 

without notice thereafter. 
 Transportation and per diem are included in the unit rate. 
 Overtime rates are applicable for services performed in excess of 8 hours per day Monday through 

Friday, before 8:00 AM or after 5:00 PM, and for all hours worked on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays. 
The overtime rate is 1.5 times the applicable hourly rate. 

 A minimum charge of 4 hours applies to field testing and observation services. 
 24-hour notice is required for all scheduling.  PSI will try to provide a technician when scheduled the 

same day, but cannot guarantee that a technician will be available. 
 A project management/engineering review charge is included in the unit rate. 
 For all PSI Reports issued, a secretarial charge will be billed for the typing, preparation and distribution 

of the reports. 
 The minimum billing increment for time is one hour. 
 Drilling and field service rates are based on OSHA Level D personnel protection. 
 For sites where drilling is to occur that are not readily accessible to a truck-mounted drill rig, rates for rig 

mobility, site clearing, crew stand-by time, etc. will be charged as applicable.  
 A project set-up charge of a minimum of two hours applies to all projects. 
 Services and fees not listed on this schedule may be quoted on request. 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No. 
Page 10 of 11 
 

 

Professional Service Industries, Inc. 
Project Data Sheet 

Construction Material Testing and Observation Services 
 

1. Project Name:  
 
2. Project Location: 
 
3. Your Job No.:        Purchase Order No.: 
 
4. Project Manager:    Telephone No.:  
 
5. Number and Distribution of Reports: 
 

(   ) copies to:        (   ) copies to: 
 
            
 
        
E-mail:            E-mail:  
 
(   ) copies to:        (   ) copies to: 
 
            
 
        
 
E-mail:            E-mail:  
 

6. Invoicing Address:   
 
 
 
 
 

Attn:        
 
7. Site Contact:     Telephone No.: 
 
8. Other Pertinent Information: 
 
 
 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No. 
Page 11 of 11 
 

 

 



 

 

  
Professional Service Industries, Inc. 45749 Helm Street, Plymouth, MI 48170. Phone: (734) 453-7900. Fax: (734) 453-0724 

 

         May 3, 2013 
 
Mr. Brian D. Barrick, RLA 
Senior Landscape Architect 
Beckett & Raeder, Inc. 
535 West William St, Suite 101 
Ann Arbor, MI  
 
bbarrick@bria2.com 
 
Phone:  734-663-2622 
 
Subject: Construction Observation and Material Testing Services Proposal for 
  Lakeside Park Improvements Project  

Site Work/Renovations 
Ypsilanti Township, Michigan  
PSI Proposal Number – 0379-94955 
 
 

Dear Mr. Barrick: 
 
Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI) is pleased to submit the following proposal for 
providing construction materials testing and inspection services for the referenced 
project. 
 
PSI is the largest independent engineering testing firm in the United States having 125 
offices located in 40 states with 2,500 employees.  As the nation’s largest materials 
testing firm, PSI’s solid credentials will bring the following benefits to your project: 
  
BENCH STRENGTH - PSI has the necessary equipment and manpower to provide full-
time field technicians during peak construction activity. 
 
COST EFFECTIVE - Our company management and operating procedures dictate cost-
effective utilization of our resources and we pass the savings on to our clients. 
 
The PSI Plymouth, Michigan office is currently accredited by the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers for Soils and Aggregate and holds accreditations from the American 
Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) Materials 
Reference laboratory (AMRL) in Hot Mix Asphalt, Aggregate, Soil and Portland Cement 
Concrete. In addition, PSI is currently working on several municipal projects throughout 
the State of Michigan and we are providing core services of soils, concrete and asphalt 
testing and inspection, as well as various environmental and geotechnical services. 
 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No.0379-94955 
Page 2 of 11 

 

PSI has detailed the proposed specific surveillance and testing services as described in 
our Estimated Construction Services Budget.  The categories of services included in our 
Budget consist of: 
 
 Classification of Soils 
 Engineered Grading and/or Filling 
 Foundations 
 Placement of Reinforcing Steel 
 Placement of Reinforced Concrete 
 Testing of Reinforced Concrete 

 
PSI proposes to provide the described services on a unit-price basis. Total fees will be 
determined by the actual amount of technical time expended for this project and the 
actual quantity of laboratory tests performed.  For preliminary budgeting purposes, PSI 
has prepared the following estimated budget for testing services based on information 
supplied by Beckett & Raeder, which included a review of the scope, project overview 
and project time allowance. PSI retained electronic copies of project documents. The 
work performed by PSI will depend on the actual construction schedule. All work will be 
performed at the direction of your representative on an On-Call basis.  Prior to starting 
work on the project it would be beneficial to meet to discuss a detailed schedule of your 
testing needs after which we can more accurately determine the total project testing 
budgets.   
 
PROJECT OVERVIEW 
 
Based on information provided within the project documents, the field activities will 
consist of general site grading, foundations, and concrete placement.   
 
PSI has detailed the proposed specific surveillance and testing services as described in 
our Estimated Construction Services Budget.  The categories of services included in our 
Budget consist of: 
 
 Subgrade Construction/ Earthwork Operations/ Foundations: This service is 

required for preparation of the sub-grade, installation of the sub-drainage system, 
underground utilities, and aggregate base.  Our field representative will observe and 
document undercut operations to remove unsuitable soils, if encountered, evaluate 
native and fill soils, and determine the moisture content and in-place dry density of 
engineered backfill materials.  In order to expedite the testing operations and to 
minimize delays to the contractor, our field representative will use a nuclear 
moisture-density gauge to verify compliance of fill materials with compaction 
specifications.  More specifically, we propose to do the following: 

 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No.0379-94955 
Page 3 of 11 

 

1. Perform maximum density and optimum moisture content testing (Modified 
Proctor test, ASTM D-1557) for each fill material that is proposed for use 
at the site. 

 
2. Perform grain-size analysis of materials per ASTM for each specified 

material to determine suitability of material for drainage, bedding and 
engineered backfill. 

 
3. Perform in-place density / moisture tests to establish degree of 

compaction of fill materials during the engineered fill placement. 
 

4. Verify soil bearing capacity utilizing a Housel Penetrometer, Pocket 
Penetrometer or Dynamic Cone Penetrometer (DCP).  Compare in place 
soil conditions with Geotechnical information. 

 
 Cast-In-Place-Concrete – This service is required for the construction of 

foundations, walkways, curbs, pads and concrete pavement.  Our field 
representative will observe the placement of reinforcing steel/mesh, observe 
concrete placement operations, perform appropriate field-testing and mold 
compression test cylinders.  We will also perform the necessary related and/or 
follow-up services including the following: 

 
1. Observe mix cycle, concrete age, and delivery tickets. 

 
2. Observe concrete placement, consolidation, finishing and curing 

procedures. 
 
3. Conduct the following field concrete tests: 

 
 Slump (ASTM C 143) at the rate determined by the project 

specifications.  Perform slump tests at the discharge end and at the 
truck, if concrete is pumped. 

 Temperature at the rate determined by the project specifications. 
 Air content (ASTM C 183 or C 231) at the rate determined by the 

project specifications.  
 Unit weight and yield (ASTM C 138) at the rate determined by the 

project specifications. 
 One set of four compressive strength test specimens, (cylinders 

ASTM- 
C 31), at the rate determined by the project specifications. 
 

4. Perform the following laboratory tests: 
 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No.0379-94955 
Page 4 of 11 

 

 Compressive strength tests at the rate determined by the project 
specifications. One at seven days; two at 28 days; and one held for 
later breaks. 

 
Please note that our services do not include supervision or direction of the actual work.  
Also, be aware that neither the presence of our field representative nor the observation 
and testing by our firm shall imply PSI's responsibility for defects discovered in the 
construction work.  It is understood that our firm will not be responsible for job or site 
safety on this project.  Job site safety will be the sole responsibility of others. 
 
Under the scope of work covered by this proposal, the words "inspection" and "verify" 
are used to mean observation of the work and the conducting of tests by PSI to 
determine substantial compliance with plans, specifications and design concepts.  The 
term “continuous” as stated herein, shall mean the Technician/Inspector is on the site 
and in the general work area during the activity requiring observation and inspection.  
 
ALL-INCLUSIVE PROPOSED FEES 
 
As requested, PSI has provided an all inclusive per daily rates for our technician’s to 
provide the requisite field testing services.  These rates are inclusive of FIELD AND 
LABORATORY COORDINATION ACTIVITIES, REPORT REVIEW, FIELD 
EQUIPMENT USAGE, VEHICLE COSTS, SECRETARIAL SERVICES AND PROJECT 
MANAGEMENT.  We have also included in this rate approximately 3 hours per week for 
report review, coordination and project management. A minimum 2 hour charge will be 
applied, unless work for the day is cancelled by the contractor without advance notice. 
Minimum “cancellation charges” will be limited to half day rates: 
 
 
ALL INCLUSIVE UNIT RATES:  
 

 For observing earthwork operations, foundations, and concrete placement, by an 
experienced engineering technician for up to 8 hours:  

 
 $50.00 per hour for regular hours 

 Half Day Rate of $200.00 per half day. 

 Daily Rate of $400.00 per day.  

 

The estimated total fees will, of course, depend on the construction schedule, progress 
of work and unforeseen problems encountered.   
 
We propose to perform the work on a unit rate basis in accordance with the attached 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No.0379-94955 
Page 5 of 11 

 

Schedule of Services and Fees.  PSI’s fees will be determined on a time and materials 
expended and the number of field and laboratory tests performed for this project.  PSI’s 
estimate assumes all work will be completed Monday through Friday between the hours 
of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.  This project will be serviced from our Plymouth office, 
approximately 15 miles from the project site. Overtime or weekend / holiday rate will be 
charged at 1.5 times the unit rates listed above.  
 
The total fee for our services is dependent on many factors, including duration of the 
project, actual hours worked, weather conditions, and subsurface conditions 
encountered. The above factors will also affect the amount of time that the project 
manager will be involved in the project.  For typical projects, approximately 3 hours a 
week should be budgeted for project management’s involvement with each major task 
based on full time inspection.  
 
We understand that less than full-time services may be required at various times on this 
project.  Accordingly, we will only charge for the actual services provided. 
 
 
 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No.0379-94955 
Page 6 of 11 

 

Project Estimate Sheet
Construction Oberservation and Material Testing Services

Milestone Schedule:
Lakeside Park Improvements Project

Item Quantity Unit Rate Totals
Soils/ Earthwork/Foundations

Engineering Technician 9 Half Days at up to 4 Hours 200.00$    1,800.00$     

Engineering Technician 7 Full Days at up to 8 Hours 400.00$    2,800.00$     
4,600.00$    

Cast-in-Place Concrete

Engineering Technician 7 Half Days at up to 4 Hours 200.00$    1,400.00$     
1,400.00$    

Laboratory Tests

2 each 175.00$    350.00$        

2 each 65.00$      130.00$        

50 each 12.00$      600.00$        

1,080.00$     

7,080.00$     

TBD

Moisture/Density Relationship 
(ASTM D1557)

Concrete Compressive Strength 
(ASTM C39)

Brian Barrick, Senior Landscape Architect

Item Quoted:

Quoted to:

Soil Classification (ASTM D2488)

 
 
 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No.0379-94955 
Page 7 of 11 

 

 
 
Additional services requested but not quoted in this proposal will be performed in 
accordance with the attached "Schedule of Services and Fees". We also proposed that 
the work be performed pursuant to PSI’s General Conditions. A copy of the General 
Conditions is enclosed herewith and incorporated into this proposal. PSI will proceed 
with the work and will issue the daily materials testing and field observation reports after 
receipt of a signed copy of this proposal intact or a purchase order referencing this 
proposal by number and date.  When returning this proposal, please complete the 
attached Project Data Sheet so that your file can be properly established. 
 
 
Remarks:  See attached "Schedule of Service and Fees". 

  
A representative of PSI will be contacting you to confirm receipt of this proposal and to 
discuss any questions that you may have.  PSI appreciates the opportunity to offer its 
services and looks forward to working with you on this project 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  
  
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE INDUSTRIES, INC. 
  

Dor’Mario Brown Mahmoud E. El-Gamal, Ph.D., P.E. 
Branch Manager Chief Engineer / District Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agreed to This __________________ Day of  _____________________________ , 2013 
 
Name:  _________________________________________________________________  
 
Title:  __________________________________________________________________  
 
Firm:  __________________________________________________________________  



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No.0379-94955 
Page 8 of 11 

 

 
Simplify Paperwork 

To help streamline paperwork, this proposal can be considered an annual agreement for 
services in 2013. When projects arise which need our services, simply issue us a Purchase 
Order or some other form of authorization, indicating the name of the project.  We will set up 
each project separately based on this agreement. This will eliminate the need to issue proposals 
and contracts for each new project while maintaining individual project tracking.   
 
Would you like this proposal to serve as a 2012 annual agreement?   yes  /   no 
 
Please sign one copy of this proposal and return to this office to serve as authorization to 
proceed. 
 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No. 
Page 9 of 11 
 

 

Remarks: 
 

 All rates are billed on a portal to portal basis 
 Unit prices/rates are in effect for 12 months from the date of this proposal and are subject to change 

without notice thereafter. 
 Transportation and per diem are included in the unit rate. 
 Overtime rates are applicable for services performed in excess of 8 hours per day Monday through 

Friday, before 8:00 AM or after 5:00 PM, and for all hours worked on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays. 
The overtime rate is 1.5 times the applicable hourly rate. 

 A minimum charge of 4 hours applies to field testing and observation services. 
 24-hour notice is required for all scheduling.  PSI will try to provide a technician when scheduled the 

same day, but cannot guarantee that a technician will be available. 
 A project management/engineering review charge is included in the unit rate. 
 For all PSI Reports issued, a secretarial charge will be billed for the typing, preparation and distribution 

of the reports. 
 The minimum billing increment for time is one hour. 
 Drilling and field service rates are based on OSHA Level D personnel protection. 
 For sites where drilling is to occur that are not readily accessible to a truck-mounted drill rig, rates for rig 

mobility, site clearing, crew stand-by time, etc. will be charged as applicable.  
 A project set-up charge of a minimum of two hours applies to all projects. 
 Services and fees not listed on this schedule may be quoted on request. 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No. 
Page 10 of 11 
 

 

Professional Service Industries, Inc. 
Project Data Sheet 

Construction Material Testing and Observation Services 
 

1. Project Name:  
 
2. Project Location: 
 
3. Your Job No.:        Purchase Order No.: 
 
4. Project Manager:    Telephone No.:  
 
5. Number and Distribution of Reports: 
 

(   ) copies to:        (   ) copies to: 
 
            
 
        
E-mail:            E-mail:  
 
(   ) copies to:        (   ) copies to: 
 
            
 
        
 
E-mail:            E-mail:  
 

6. Invoicing Address:   
 
 
 
 
 

Attn:        
 
7. Site Contact:     Telephone No.: 
 
8. Other Pertinent Information: 
 
 
 



Ypsilanti Township, MI  May 3, 2013 
Lakeside Park Improvements Project   
Site Work/Renovations 
PSI Proposal No. 
Page 11 of 11 
 

 

 



Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
1343 Rochester Road • PO Box 249 • Troy, Michigan 48099-0249 

(248) 588-6200 or (313) T-E-S-T-I-N-G 
Fax (248) 588-6232 

 

Copyright 1997  Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc.  All rights reserved. 
 

All services undertaken are subject to the following policy. Reports are submitted for exclusive use of the clients to whom they are addressed.  Their significance is subject to the 
adequacy and representative character of the samples and the comprehensiveness of the tests, examinations and surveys made.  No quotation from reports or use of TEC’s name is 
permitted except as expressly authorized by TEC in writing. 

 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS & FULL-SERVICE PROFESSIONAL TESTING AND INSPECTION 

TEC Proposal Number:  010-13-0129 
Date Issued:  May 3, 2013  
 

Mr. Brian D. Barrick, RLA 
Beckett & Raeder, Inc. 
535 W. William, Suite 101 
Ann Arbor, Michigan  48103   
 
 
Re: Construction Testing Services 
 Lakeside Park Improvements Project 
 Ypsilanti Charter Township, Michigan 
  
 
Dear Mr. Barrick: 
 
Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. (TEC) is pleased to submit our proposal for the construction 
testing services on the Lakeside Park Improvements Project in Ypsilanti Charter Township, Michigan.   
 
PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

 
We understand the construction consists of, but is not limited to site preparation, soil 
erosion/sedimentation control, miscellaneous demolition, clearing and grubbing, earthwork, drainage 
system installation, concrete sidewalk, HMA paths, stabilized gravel paths, gravel drive, regulatory 
signage, site furnishings, picnic shelter, overlook platforms, floating dock, and landscaping.  It is our 
understanding that no proposal may be withdrawn for at least sixty (60) consecutive calendar days 
after the official bid opening. 
 
SCOPE OF WORK 
 
1.  Construction Observation and Materials Testing  
 
It is anticipated that the construction materials testing will include but not necessarily be limited to the 
following: 
 

Earthwork – TEC will provide a Senior Engineering Technician to perform observation and 
testing of earthwork operations including proof rolling, density testing of engineered fill, backfill 
and aggregate base materials.  

 
Cast-in-Place Concrete – TEC will provide a Senior Engineering Technician to perform 
observation and testing of cast-in-place concrete including placement of reinforcing steel and 
molding of concrete test cylinders.  
 
Bituminous Paving – TEC will provide a Senior Engineering Technician to perform 
observation and testing of aggregate base materials and asphalt leveling and wearing courses.

OFFICES IN ANN ARBOR, DETROIT, AND TROY 
FOUNDED IN 1966 



Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
 
Client:  Beckett & Raeder, Inc. 
Date:   May 3, 2013 
 
TEC Proposal Number:  010-13-0129 
 
Schedule of Fees 
 
Personnel:  

 Senior Engineering Technician ........................................................................... Hour $ 35.00 
 Project Engineer/Manager .................................................................................. Hour $ 85.00 
 Professional Engineer......................................................................................... Hour  $ 115.00 

 
 Laboratory Tests: 

 Concrete Cylinder Tests ..................................................................................... Each $ 12.00 
 Sieve Analysis..................................................................................................... Each $ 70.00 
 Moisture Density Relationship of Soils................................................................ Each $ 120.00 
 Marshall Mix Relationship ................................................................................... Each $ 120.00 

 
 Equipment/Reimbursables: 

 Nuclear Density Gauge....................................................................................... Day $ 25.00 
 Site Trips............................................................................................................. Each $ 30.00 

 
Estimate of Fees 
 

1.01 Subgrade Proofroll Verification and Soil Bearing Capacity Verification 
     Senior Engineering Technician 24 Hour $35.00 $840.00 $840.00

1.02 Compaction Testing of Granular Fill and Aggregate Bases 
     Senior Engineering Technician 40 Hour $35.00 $1,400.00
     Nuclear Density Gauge 5 Day $25.00 $125.00
     Soil Moisture Density Relationship 2 Each $120.00 $240.00

     Sieve Analysis 1 Each $70.00 $70.00 $1,835.00
1.03 Trench Compaction Testing  

     Senior Engineering Technician 40 Hour $35.00 $1,400.00
     Nuclear Density Gauge 5 Day $25.00 $125.00
     Soil Moisture Density Relationship 1 Each $120.00 $120.00
     Sieve Analysis 1 Each $70.00 $70.00 $1,715.00

1.04 Concrete Testing and Inspection for Headwalls, Footings and Sidewalks
     Senior Engineering Technician 40 Hour $35.00 $1,400.00
     Concrete Cylinder Tests 20 Each $12.00 $240.00 $1,640.00

1.05 Bituminous Pavement Testing
     Senior Engineering Technician 32 Hour $35.00 $1,120.00
     Nuclear Density Gauge 4 Day $25.00 $100.00
     Marshall Mix Relationship 4 Each $120.00 $480.00 $1,700.00

1.06 Engineering Support/Reimbursables  
     Project Manager/Engineer 8 Hours $85.00 $680.00
     Site Trips 25 Each $30.00 $750.00 $1,430.00

$9,160.00Testing Total     

Item No. Inspection/Testing Activity Quantity Units Unit Cost Sub-Total Total

 
 

 

I:\cs\busdev\proposals\010-13\0129 Lakeside Park Improvements Project, Ypsilanti Charter Township-Beckett & Raeder, Inc\Proposal.doc  2 of 3 



Testing Engineers & Consultants, Inc. 
 
Client:  Beckett & Raeder, Inc. 
Date:   May 3, 2013 
 
TEC Proposal Number:  010-13-0129 
 
We thank you for the opportunity to submit our proposal for this project.  Please contact this 
writer if you have questions or need additional information. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

TESTING ENGINEERS & CONSULTANTS, INC. 

 
Ruben E. Ramos, P.E. 
Vice President 
Engineering and Construction Services 

RER/jb 

I:\cs\busdev\proposals\010-13\0129 Lakeside Park Improvements Project, Ypsilanti Charter Township-Beckett & Raeder, Inc\Proposal.doc  3 of 3 























 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
TO:  Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 

 
CC:  Jeff Allen, Residential Services Director 
  Doug Winters, Township Attorney 

 
FROM: Art Serafinski, CPRP, Recreation Director 
 
DATE:  May 6, 2013  

 
RE: Request for approval to award the Boathouse portion of the Lakeside 

Park Improvement Project (MNRTF 10-05) to the low bidder, Contracting 
Resources 

 
 
 

Included with this communication please find the letter of recommendation from 
Christopher Longerbeam, Project Engineer from Eastern Michigan University and 
supporting documents for the construction of the proposed boathouse.  As you will 
see, a total of five bids were received and EMU’s recommendation is to award the 
project to Contracting Resources, who are the low bidder with a base cost of 
$320,000.   
 
As part of the grant process, we will need to forward our recommendation to the 
Michigan Department of Natural Resources for their approval.  Therefore, we 
respectfully ask that Contracting Resources be awarded the project pending MDNR 
approval & attorney review.   
 
We ask that this item be placed on the May 13, 2013 Board meeting agenda for 
consideration.  I will be in attendance at the Board meeting to answer any questions 
you may have. 

 

 

Recreation Department 
Community Center 

 
2025 E. Clark Road 
Ypsilanti, MI  48198 

Phone:  (734) 544-3800 
Fax:  (734) 544-3888 

50 & Beyond: (734) 544-3838 
 

www.ytown.org 
 

Supervisor 

BRENDA L. STUMBO 
Clerk 

KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 
Treasurer 

LARRY J. DOE 
Trustees 

JEAN HALL CURRIE 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

MIKE MARTIN 
SCOTT MARTIN 

 

http://www.ytown.org/











	May 13, 2013 Board Meeting
	Work Session Agenda
	Review Agenda
	Other Discussion

	Board Meeting Agenda
	Public Comments
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes
	04/22/13 Work Session 
	04/22-13 Regluar Meeting
	04/26/13 Special Meeting

	Statements & Checks

	Supervisor Report
	Proclamations 
	Multiple Chemical Sensitivity Awareness
	Chemical Awareness Week


	Clerk Report
	Treasurer Report
	Trustee Report
	Attorney Report
	New Business
	Budget Amendment #8
	Park Commission Request
	HUD "First Look Program"
	Resolution No. 2013-14, EVIP
	Resolution No. 2013-15, 953 E. Michigan Ave. "First Right of Refusal
	Michigan Land Bank Grant Contract

	Other Business
	Authorizations & Bids
	14-B  Roof Replacement 
	N. Hydro Erosion Project
	Liberty Square Demolition
	Lakeside Park
	Lakeside Park Improvement Project
	Geotechnical Materials Testing Services
	Lakeside Park Boathouse



